
SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE 
 
 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners will conduct a Special Meeting on Monday, 

February 8, 2021, beginning at 12:00 noon and reconvening on Tuesday, February 9, 2021, at 9:00 

A.M.  The purpose of the meeting is to hold a retreat to review goals and objectives for Watauga 

County.  The meeting will be held remotely, via zoom.  

 

To join the meeting on Monday, February 8, 2021, please click the following link:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86778761514?pwd=c0pOWlFUS2treExOaytIZ0YvVUhYdz09  

 

OR call:  1 929 205 6099 and enter Meeting ID:  867 7876 1514 and Passcode:  12345 

 

To join the meeting on Tuesday, February 9, 2021, please click the following link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88391690789?pwd=YmZjdmlEWmRVakNrdHBnRzRLaFhiQT09  

 

OR call:  1 929 205 6099 and enter Meeting ID:  883 9169 0789 and Passcode:  12345 

 

For information or questions, please contact the County Manager’s Office at 828-265-8000. 

 
 
       John Welch 
       CHAIRMAN 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86778761514?pwd=c0pOWlFUS2treExOaytIZ0YvVUhYdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88391690789?pwd=YmZjdmlEWmRVakNrdHBnRzRLaFhiQT09




 

 WATAUGA COUNTY 
 
Administration Building, Suite 205 – 814 West King Street – Boone, NC 28607 – (828) 265-8000 

TDD 1-800-735-2962 – Voice 1-800-735-8262 – FAX (828) 264-3230 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:    Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Deron Geouque 
  County Manager  

SUBJECT:   Annual Retreat  

DATE:   January 28, 2021 

 
The COVID-19 pandemic continues to significantly impact federal, state and local governments.  
Many states have experienced the worst job loss since the Great Recession.  However, steady 
growth is forecasted for the North Carolina economy with the unemployment rate targeted to 
decline to 5.1% by year end.  The rate is still higher than the pre-COVID rate of 3.6%.  The 
COVID-19 vaccine will factor significantly in the recovery of the economy as businesses are able 
to reopen and less restrictions are placed on travel and gatherings.   
 
On January 27, 2021 the State Legislators kicked off the budget process.  The top five (5) statewide 
county priorities are: 
 

1. Seek legislation, funding, and other efforts to expand digital infrastructure/broadband 
capability to the unserved and under-served areas and residents of the state.  

2. Seek additional revenue sources, including a statewide bond referendum and expanded 
lottery proceeds, and changes to the Needs-Based Public-School Capital Fund, to 
equitably address statewide public school and community college capital challenges. 
Revisions to the Needs-Based Public-School Capital Fund that will allow more equitable 
access to counties to take advantage of the funds include: 

• Allowing Needs-Based Public-School Capital Funds to be used for renovations and 
improvements in addition to new construction.  

• Reducing or eliminating local match requirements for Tier 1 and Tier 2 counties.  
• Eliminate the five-year prohibition of receiving funds from the Public-School 

Building Capital Fund if a county receives a grant from the Needs-Based Public-
School Capital Fund by repealing G.S. 115C-546.2(f).  

3. Support legislation to allow counties to include specific language on the ballot referendum 
designating how the proposed quarter-cent local sales tax levy will be spent.  

4. Increase state funding and support legislation for behavioral health services and facilities, 
including dedicated resources for community paramedicine projects; inpatient crisis beds; 
substance use disorders; specialty courts; individuals with mental health issues in county 
jails; and single stream funding for area authorities. 

5. Oppose efforts to divert to the state, fees or taxes currently allocated to the counties or to 
erode existing county revenue streams with unfunded mandates. 

 

   OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY MANAGER 

 



The COVID-19 pandemic will continue to influence Federal and State budgets that will have a 
trickle-down effect on local government budgets.  The State budget will be closely monitored by 
staff for any potential impact to the County’s 2021-2022 budget.   
 
The Board and staff shared concerns with the potential to experience a significant decline in sales 
tax related to the pandemic in constructing the FY 2020-2021 budget.  Last year’s budget cycle 
saw the Board make difficult decisions conservatively and cautiously that have put the County on 
solid financial footing.  Staff is projecting a positive financial position as the County commences 
the process for formulating next fiscal year's budget.  County revenues are trending above the 
levels established by the FY 2020-2021 budget.  Expenditures are trending within and below 
budgeted levels.   
 
The Tax Department continues work on the 2022 Revaluation.  Real estate sales have been strong 
with the average median home sale of $340,000 and the sales ratio around eighty-one percent 
(81%).  These factors will assist the County in meeting budget requests from Departments and 
outside agencies.  Watauga Medics is requesting a nine (9) hour crew in addition to the twenty-
four-hour crew that was added January 1, 2021.  The Health Department continues to struggle 
meeting their current needs on top of the COVID-19 demands.  Hopefully, the State will provide 
more funding for public health in light of the ongoing pandemic and community health matters in 
general.  Staff is planning for the opening of the new Community Recreation Center as soon as 
COVID-19 demands and restrictions are lessened.  However, the Recreation Center is hosting 
vaccination clinics through AppHealthCare and Appalachian Regional Healthcare System truly 
serving it’s designed purpose as a community center.   
 
Commissioner feedback will be crucial in developing a budget that reflects the Board’s goals and 
vision for the County.  Information will be provided regarding the County’s current fiscal status.  
Department and outside agency funding requests will be provided for the Board’s review.  COVID-
19 will make the budget process even more challenging but with the County’s current solid 
financial foundation success is obtainable with strong planning and leadership from the Board and 
execution by staff. 
 
 
 
 



TENTATIVE RETREAT AGENDA 
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

ORIGINATING FROM THE COMMUNITY ROOM IN THE 
WATAUGA COUNTY COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTER, BOONE, NC 

FEBRUARY 8 & 9, 2021 

TIME TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2021 
12:00 PM OPENING REMARKS AND LUNCH MR. DERON GEOUQUE 

1:00 PM FY 2021 REVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF FY 2022 BUDGET MS. MISTY WATSON 1 
A.  Revenues 1 
B. Expenditures 2 
C. Debt Service Report 6 
D.  Budget Calendar 8 
E.  Special Appropriations 9 

1:15 PM REVIEW OF CURRENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) MR. DERON GEOUQUE & 10 
A.  Current CIP Status Report MR. ROBERT MARSH 10 
B.  Courtroom # 2 Renovations 11 
C.  Valle Crucis Elementary School 
D.  East Annex Building Program 13 
E.  Courthouse and Administration Roof Replacements 

14 F.  County Facilities Assessment Update 
G.  Courthouse Parking 17 
H. Recreation Matters 

1. Tennis Courts
2. Basketball Court
3. Pickleball Courts

18 

I. Community Recreation Center Update 21 
J. Library 58 
K. Habitat Road Request 61 
L. School Facilities 65 

2:45 PM BREAK 
3:00 PM SANITATION MATTERS MR. REX BUCK 71 

A. Organics Recycling Market Study 71 
B. Facility Upgrades 85 

3:30 PM CALDWELL COMMUNITY COLLEGE & TECHNICAL INSTITUTE DR. MARK POARCH 111 
3:45 PM TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (TDA) MR. MATT VINCENT & 

MR. WRIGHT TILLEY 
112 

4:15 PM BREAK 
4:30 PM APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH MS. JENNIFER GREENE 
5:00 PM WATAUGA MEDICS  MR. CRAIG SULLIVAN 117 

A. Annual Report 118 
B. Future Needs 128 

 5:45 PM PUBLIC SAFETY AND EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS 
SYSTEMS UPDATE 

MR. WILL HOLT 196 

6:00 PM COUNTY MANAGER’S SUMMARY MR. DERON GEOUQUE 
7:00 PM RECESS UNTIL TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2021, AT 9:00 AM 



Page 2 
Monday, February 8, & Tuesday, February 9, 2021 

Tentative Retreat Agenda 
Board of County Commissioners 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2021 
8:30 AM BREAKFAST 
9:00 AM MIDDLE FORK GREENWAY UPDATE MS. WENDY PATOPRSTY 198 
9:15 AM MINIMUM HOUSING STANDARDS MR. JOE FURMAN 199 
 9:30 AM CENSUS 2020 MR. JOE FURMAN 226 
 9:45 AM BROADBAND UPDATE MR. JOE FURMAN 230 

10:00 AM 2022 REVALUATION MR. LARRY WARREN 
10:30 AM SCHOOL BOARD FUNDING ISSUES DR. SCOTT ELLIOTT & 

A. FY 2022 Funding Needs SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS 
B. Schools’ Capital Improvement Plan 

11:30 AM EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND RETENTION PLAN MR. DERON GEOUQUE 240 
11:45 AM MISCELLANEOUS & COMMISSIONER MATTERS 

A.  State Issues  
B.  Commissioner Matters 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE 

11:55 PM WRAP UP, GOALS & OBJECTIVES, BOARD DIRECTIVES 
12:00 PM ADJOURN 



FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20

Property Tax Totals: 28,151,345$     28,518,320$     32,480,532$   32,786,204$   37,373,588$  

Sales Tax Totals: 11,166,662       11,642,604       12,162,274     12,809,697    14,117,340   

Other Revenues: 8,328,510         9,458,125         12,451,024     11,617,631    15,658,071   

Total Revenues: 47,646,517$     49,619,049$     57,093,830$   57,213,532$   67,148,999$  

Primary County Revenues

Property Tax Totals: 
57% 

Sales Tax Totals: 
22% 

Other Revenues: 
21% 

Average Revenue Breakdown 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

1



General Fund FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 Annual Actual at Percent
Revenues Budget 12/31/2020 to Date

Property Taxes 32,480,532$     32,786,204$     37,373,588$        36,911,375$        30,445,307$     82.5%
Sales Taxes 12,162,274       12,809,697       14,117,340          9,446,800            4,138,709         43.8%
Other Taxes 904,135           952,758           1,017,017            798,000               722,003            90.5%
Intergovernmental 5,087,374         5,778,526         7,829,046            4,091,440            2,038,761         49.8%
Permits and Fees 766,847           787,275           839,865               699,700               497,305            71.1%
Sales and Services 1,168,094         1,194,343         1,079,918            1,232,968            324,345            26.3%
Miscellaneous 3,659,574         1,344,481         1,273,134            587,964               407,159            69.2%
Transfer from Other Funds 865,000           1,560,248         3,619,091            228,000               -                    0.0%
Fund Balance -                   -                   -                      3,383,636            -                    0.0%

Revenue Subtotal: 57,093,830$     57,213,532$     67,148,999$        57,379,883$        38,573,589$     67.2%

Expenditures
General Administration 3,849,908$       2,107,172$       1,968,935$          2,183,656$          551,216$          25.2%
Finance 408,116           386,855           391,481               410,025               192,902            47.0%
Tax 1,225,890         1,254,749         1,321,991            1,465,172            662,141            45.2%
Legal 75,850             57,749             86,155                 81,000                32,703              40.4%
Court Facilities 1,087               1,361               5,011                   2,000                  -                    0.0%
Elections 321,766           335,633           404,870               492,328               500,650            101.7%
Register of Deeds 515,322           520,726           533,430               566,132               281,620            49.7%
Information Technology 809,373           844,644           993,624               1,077,165            552,947            51.3%
Maintenance/Buildings 2,648,984         2,823,688         3,220,074            5,607,908            1,630,739         29.1%
Sheriff/Jail 5,903,310         6,186,586         6,747,492            7,446,100            3,274,380         44.0%
Emergency Services 2,540,879         2,520,656         3,269,951            2,704,231            1,763,267         65.2%
Planning & Inspections 642,566           651,345           621,424               677,417               297,871            44.0%
Ambulance & Rescue 1,340,393         1,457,499         1,471,249            1,835,728            706,844            38.5%
Animal Control 154,442           131,034           135,460               146,700               65,780              44.8%
Transportation 225,389           224,792           231,493               87,956                41,577              47.3%
Economic Development 73,795             205,436           181,640               126,417               22,826              18.1%
Cooperative Extension 242,313           255,004           274,185               283,261               112,546            39.7%
Soil Conservation 113,518           118,435           258,615               215,614               20,107              9.3%
Public Health 614,490           680,705           746,920               813,129               406,565            50.0%
Mental Health 171,195           171,195           171,194               171,194               85,597              50.0%
Project on Aging 1,252,113         1,281,296         1,278,447            1,575,781            573,917            36.4%
Veteran's Service 114,020           118,550           123,532               131,995               60,448              45.8%
Special Appropriations 524,357           468,469           531,493               529,066               305,368            57.7%
WCS, Board of Education 14,572,326       14,992,995       15,248,056          14,614,674          7,157,049         49.0%
CCC&TI, Watauga Campus 924,895           1,252,325         1,000,279            1,000,279            500,140            50.0%
Library 557,160           604,760           652,360               652,360               326,180            50.0%
Parks & Recreation 995,017           1,010,962         795,436               1,520,305            342,876            22.6%
Transfers to Other Funds 12,107,580       9,703,918         9,868,106            10,962,290$        5,443,741         49.7%

Expenditures Subtotal: 52,926,054$     50,368,539$     52,532,903$        57,379,883$        25,911,997$     45.2%

Social Services Fund
Revenues

Federal/State Programs 3,114,049$       3,392,855$       3,193,993$          3,472,653$          1,195,854$       34.4%
Miscellaneous 19,897             27,145             86,407                 11,575                8,867                76.6%
Transfer from General Fund 1,473,285         1,396,655         2,232,006            2,110,851            1,055,426         50.0%
Fund Balance -                   -                   -                      6,076                  -                    0.0%

Revenues Subtotal: 4,607,231$       4,816,655$       5,512,406$          5,601,155$          2,260,147$       40.4%

Expenditures
Administration 3,010,758$       3,177,801$       3,184,033$          3,465,612$          1,564,283$       45.1%
Child Support Enforcement 200,538           215,705           206,020               227,090               98,510              43.4%
Programs 1,305,936         1,777,923         1,585,465            1,908,453            817,525            42.8%

Expenditures Subtotal: 4,517,232$       5,171,429$       4,975,518$          5,601,155$          2,480,318$       44.3%

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

Intergovernmental 156,093$          150,629$          140,998$             129,330$             37,185$            28.8%
Charges for Services 4,970,636         5,092,325         5,118,690            5,225,184            4,259,057         81.5%
Miscellaneous 205,443           126,841           127,692               11,737                7,809                66.5%
Fund Balance Appropriated -                   -                   -                      1,710,140            -                    0.0%

Revenues Subtotal: 5,332,172$       5,369,795$       5,387,380$          7,076,391$          4,304,051$       60.8%

Expenditures
Solid Waste Operations 4,411,990$       4,969,102$       5,101,540$          6,983,740$          1,995,100$       28.6%
Recycling Operations 250,928           108,761           81,986                 92,651                50,415              54.4%

Expenditures Subtotal: 4,662,918$       5,077,863$       5,183,526$          7,076,391$          2,045,515$       28.9%

Budget Summary Report
Actuals Thru 6-30 of Each Year FY 2020-21

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

2



Fiscal Total for Law Percent of Percent of 
Years Sheriff Jail Enforcement Change County Budget

2020-21 5,049,045$          2,397,055$          7,446,100$          3.47% 12.98%
2019-20 4,839,670$          2,356,496$          7,196,166$          8.94% 11.41%
2018-19 4,314,320$          2,291,060$          6,605,380$          4.24% 11.25%
2017-18 4,106,758$          2,230,052$          6,336,810$          6.19% 10.78%
2016-17* 3,793,710$          2,173,635$          5,967,345$          4.24% 11.63%
2015-16 3,626,820$          2,097,850$          5,724,670$          2.71% 11.69%
2014-15 3,464,017$          2,109,541$          5,573,558$          9.20% 11.51%

*$254,000 in one time additional capital removed from FY 16-17 totals.

Law Enforcement Budget History

 $5,573,558  

 $5,724,670   $5,967,345  

 $6,336,810  

 $6,605,380  

 $7,196,166  
 $7,446,100  

 $5,500,000

 $5,800,000

 $6,100,000

 $6,400,000

 $6,700,000

 $7,000,000

 $7,300,000

 $7,600,000

Total Law Enforcement Budgets 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

3



Long-Term 
Needs

Future Valle 
Crucis School

2014-15 175,000     300,000 475,000 296,693 -               -                  771,693
2015-16 275,000     375,000 650,000 300,000 -               -                  950,000
2016-17 300,000     400,000

300,000 * 1,000,000 300,000 -               -                  1,300,000
2017-18 450,000     500,000 950,000 300,000 1,500,000 -                  2,750,000
2018-19 450,000     500,000 950,000 300,000 1,500,000 -                  2,750,000
2019-20 450,000     500,000 950,000 300,000 1,500,000 2,700,000 5,450,000
2020-21 450,000     500,000 950,000 300,000 -               -                  1,250,000
2021-22 450,000     500,000 950,000 300,000 1,500,000 2,700,000 5,450,000
2022-23 450,000     500,000 950,000 300,000 1,500,000 2,700,000 5,450,000
2023-24 450,000     500,000 950,000 300,000 1,500,000 2,700,000 5,450,000

ADM Funds:   Balance is $3,650.

*One time allocations from unassigned fund balance increase at prior year end.

Capital Funding Plan

Watauga County School System

Current 
Capital

 Capital Project 
Set Aside 

Total Annual 
County Funding

Lottery 
Funds

Total Capital 
Funding

Lottery Funds: Unallocated balance is $157,792 with additional revenues expected 
in FY 20-21 of approximately $110,830.  (Utilized the unallocated balance as the 
2020-21 as the estimated lottery distribution has not been released.)

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

4



Budgeted

Fiscal Year 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21
Current Operating 10,984,774    11,839,645  11,839,645  12,195,409  12,198,409   12,558,345  12,942,400      13,157,455  13,557,455      13,864,674    13,864,674  

     Annual Inc/(Dec) (80,905)         854,871       -              355,764       3,000           359,936       384,055          215,055       400,000          307,219        -              

-0.73% 7.78% 0.00% 3.00% 0.02% 2.95% 3.06% 1.66% 3.04% 2.27% 0.00%

WCS Fund Balance 2,400,214     4,499,249    4,687,534    4,077,715    3,333,909    3,235,107    3,256,372       3,256,238    3,662,377       3,775,921     
Fund Bal Inc/(Dec) 441,788        2,099,035    188,285       (609,819)     (743,806)      (98,802)       21,265            (134)            406,139          113,544        

Fiscal Year 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21
Additional Projects 50,000           -               -               -               -               -               -                   -               -                  -                 -              

Capital Projects Fund -                 -               -               640,400       300,000        375,000       400,000           500,000       500,000           500,000         500,000       

Long Term Capital Needs -                 -               -               -               -               -               -                   1,500,000    1,500,000        4,200,000      -              

QSCB Projects -                 -               -               -               -               -               -                   -               -                  -                 -              

Lottery/ADM Projects 650,493         966,108       268,964       216,249       820,740        210,132       566,931           167,500       456,200           295,711         300,000       
Current Capital 407,814         321,574       340,400       -               175,000        275,000       300,000           450,000       450,000           450,000         450,000       

Subtotal of Capital: 1,108,307      1,287,682    609,364       856,649       1,295,740     860,132       1,266,931        2,617,500    2,906,200        5,445,711      1,250,000    
     Annual Inc/(Dec) 3,189,916     179,375       (678,318)     247,285       439,091       (435,608)     406,799          1,350,569    288,700          2,539,511     (4,195,711)  

Debt Service 6,370,571      7,528,099    6,999,071    7,020,392    6,452,109     5,458,896    5,348,988        5,202,104    5,060,420        4,863,331      4,562,231    

WCS Fund Balance 261,068        321,344       173,108       39,504         315,497       303,378       325,991          405,963       334,564          283,871        
Capital Bal Inc/(Dec) 60,276          60,276         (148,236)     (133,604)     275,993       (12,119)       22,613            79,972         (71,399)           (50,693)         

Total County Funding 
Excluding Debt Service 
and Lottery Projects 11,442,588   12,161,219  12,180,045  12,835,809  12,673,409  13,208,345  13,642,400     15,607,455  16,007,455     19,014,674   14,814,674 

     Annual Inc/(Dec) 2,663,723     718,631       18,826         655,764       (162,400)      534,936       434,055          1,965,055    400,000          3,007,219     (4,200,000)  

Total Funding 18,463,652   20,655,426  19,448,080  20,072,450  19,946,258  18,877,373  19,558,319     20,977,059  21,524,075     24,173,716   19,676,905 

     Annual Inc/(Dec) 5,364,900     2,191,774    (1,207,346)  624,370       (126,192)      (1,068,885)  680,946          1,418,740    547,016          2,649,641     (4,496,811)  

Change in Operating Fund Balance, last year versus 9 years ago: 1,375,707$      increase

Change in Capital Fund Balance, last year versus 9 years ago: 22,803$           increase

Ten Year Funding Summary for Watauga County Schools

Current Expense

Capital Expense

Lottery Funds: Unallocated balance is $157,792 with additional revenues expected in FY 20-21 of 
approximately $110,830.  (Utilized the unallocated balance as the 2020-21 as the estimated lottery 
distribution has not been released.)

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

5



LOBs LOBs

2020-21 (P) 3,660,000                    1,320,000                    4,980,000                    
(I) 902,231                      794,400                      1,696,631                    

Total 4,562,231                    2,114,400                    6,676,631                    

2021-22 (P) 3,680,000                    1,320,000                    5,000,000                    
(I) 743,998                      728,400                      1,472,398                    

Total 4,423,998                    2,048,400                    6,472,398                    

2022-23 (P) 3,720,000                    1,320,000                    5,040,000                    
(I) 567,933                      662,400                      1,230,333                    

Total 4,287,933                    1,982,400                    6,270,333                    

2023-24 (P) 3,670,000                    1,320,000                    4,990,000                    
(I) 481,257                      596,400                      1,077,657                    

Total 4,151,257                    1,916,400                    6,067,657                    

2024-25 (P) 3,620,000                    1,325,000                    4,945,000                    
(I) 395,012                      530,400                      925,412                      

Total 4,015,012                    1,855,400                    5,870,412                    

2025-26 (P) 3,600,000                    1,320,000                    4,920,000                    
(I) 278,415                      464,150                      742,565                      

Total 3,878,415                    1,784,150                    5,662,565                    

2026-27 (P) 3,555,000                    1,320,000                    4,875,000                    
(I) 187,335                      398,150                      585,485                      

Total 3,742,335                    1,718,150                    5,460,485                    

2027-28 (P) 3,515,000                    1,325,000                    4,840,000                    
(I) 94,905                        332,150                      427,055                      

Total 3,609,905                    1,657,150                    5,267,055                    

2028-29 (P) 1,320,000                    1,320,000                    
(I) 292,400                      292,400                      

Total 1,612,400                    1,612,400                    

2029-30 (P) 1,320,000                    1,320,000                    
(I) 226,400                      226,400                      

Total 1,546,400                    1,546,400                    

2030-31 (P) 1,320,000                    1,320,000                    
(I) 160,400                      160,400                      

Total 1,480,400                    1,480,400                    

2031-32 (P) 1,320,000                    1,320,000                    
(I) 94,400                        94,400                        

Total 1,414,400                    1,414,400                    

2032-33 (P) 1,320,000                    1,320,000                    
(I) 48,200                        48,200                        

Total 1,368,200                    1,368,200                    

Principal $29,020,000 $17,170,000 $46,190,000
Interest $3,651,086 $5,328,250 $8,979,336

Debt Service Summary

Fiscal Year
2012 High chool Debt 

(Refunded and 
Unrefunded)

2018 Recreation Center Total General Fund 
Debt Service

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

6



Total Outstanding 
Debt:

$46,190,000
6%

Available to Borrow:
$696,594,671

94%

Legal Debt Margin

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

7



 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 
BUDGET SCHEDULE 

 
January 2021 
        
Capital Improvement Plan packets to departments. 
 
January 29, 2021 
 
Capital Improvement Program requests due back.  
 
February/March 2021 
 
Requests for funding sent to outside agencies.  
 
February 8 and 9, 2021 
 
Board of Commissioners Retreat with staff. There are typically two sessions with 
some presentations. 
 
February 10, 2021 
 
Department head staff meeting - budget information packets emailed out. 
Worksheets and all supporting documents are due by email to Misty by March 12. 
Early submission is encouraged. 
 
April 2021 
 
Individual agency and department meetings will be during April with budget staff. 
 
May 4, 2021 
 
Staff submits recommended budget to Board of Commissioners for review prior to 
work sessions. 
 
May 13 and 14, 2021  
 
Budget work sessions held with staff and Board of Commissioners. There are two 
sessions planned.  
    
May 18, 2021 
 
Public hearing held on County Manager’s proposed budget.   
 
June 1, 2021 
 
Budget adoption. 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

8



SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

APPALACHIAN THEATER OF THE HC 10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          
BEECH MTN PARKS & REC -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
BLOWING ROCK PARKS & REC 12,000            12,000            12,000            12,000            12,000            12,000            
BLUE RIDGE MEDIATION/DRUG COURT 21,000            21,000            22,500            23,000            22,000            23,000            
CHILDREN'S COUNCIL 1,500              1,500              2,500              25,000            50,000            50,000            
CHILDREN'S PLAYHOUSE -                      1,223              2,500              2,500              2,500              2,500              
COMMUNITY CARE CLINIC 17,000            17,000            25,000            25,000            25,000            25,000            
FOSCOE GRANDFATHER COMM. CENTER 5,000              5,000              5,000              5,000              5,000              5,000              
FOSTER GRANDPARENT PROGRAM -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
GREEN VALLEY COMMUNITY PARK 8,000              8,000              8,000              8,000              8,000              8,000              
HOSPITALITY HOUSE - WECAN 2,500              2,500              2,500              2,500              2,500              2,500              
HOSPITALITY HOUSE 10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            
HUNGER COALITION 8,500              8,500              8,500              9,315              9,315              9,315              
MOUNTAIN ALLIANCE 10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            
OASIS 10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            
SOUTHERN APPALACHIAN HISTORICAL ASSN 22,000            22,000            22,000            22,000            22,000            22,000            
VALLE CRUCIS COMMUNITY PARK 15,000            15,000            15,000            15,000            15,000            15,000            
WAMY 13,214            2,500              2,500              2,500              2,500              2,500              
WATAUGA COUNTY ARTS COUNCIL 8,800              8,800              8,800              8,800              8,800              8,800              
WATAUGA HUMANE SOCIETY 81,401            81,482            82,460            83,865            85,036            86,822            
WATAUGA OPPORTUNITIES 33,000            33,000            33,000            33,000            33,000            33,000            
WESTERN YOUTH NETWORK 1,500              1,500              1,500              -                      -                      -                      
BLUE RIDGE RC&D COUNCIL INC. -                      -                      -                      3,000              3,000              3,000              

TOTALS: 290,415$        281,005$        293,760$        320,480$        345,651$        348,437$        

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

9



Project Description 6/30/2020 2020-21 6/30/2021
Balance Budget In Out Balance

Caldwell Community College 52,833$           50,000$        -$              -$                  102,833$         

Information Technology Needs 450,186           -                -                -                    450,186           

East Annex Renovations 337,127           -                -                -                    337,127           

Eastern Community Center 54,031             -                -                -                    54,031             

Emergency Communications 2,042,726        500,000 -                -                    2,542,726        

Facilities Maintenance 788,161           1,000,000 -                -                    1,788,161        

Future County Buildings 132,864           -                -                -                    132,864           

EDC 143,193           50,000 -                -                    193,193           

Recreation-Facilities/Maintenance 1,255,854        -                -                -                    1,255,854        

Watauga Co. Schools-Long Term Needs 4,588,492        -                -                -                    4,588,492        

Future Valle Crucis School 2,755,650        -                -                -                    2,755,650        
Watauga Co. Schools-CIP 1,054,140        500,000 74,808 -                    1,628,948        

Totals: 13,655,257$    2,100,000$   74,808$        -$                  15,830,065$    

 

Project Description
FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20

Caldwell Community College 50,000$           50,000$        50,000$        50,000$            50,000$           

EDC -                   -                -                50,000              83,463             

East Annex Renovations -                   -                -                -                    200,000           

Emergency Communications -                   250,000        250,000        250,000            500,000           

Facilities Maintenance -                   315,500        146,400        208,990            1,123,817        

Future County Buildings -                -                -                    -                   

Recreation-Facilities/Maintenance 1,843,552        2,384,500     2,477,075     1,881,140         274,655           

Watauga Co. Schools-Long Term Needs -                   -                1,500,000     1,500,000         1,500,000        

Future Valle Crucis School -                   -                -                -                    2,700,000        
Watauga Co. Schools-CIP 375,000           935,370        714,205        767,133            704,165           

Totals: $2,268,552 $3,935,370 $5,137,680 $4,707,263 $7,136,100

CAPITAL PROJECTS SUMMARY

Budget Amendments

Actual Additions

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

10



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

11



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

12



Watauga County 
Capital Improvement Plan 

FY 2022 
 
Project Title:  East Annex Renovation     Requesting Department or Agency:          __         
 
Fund:         
 
 Project Description:  Update finishes and add handicap restrooms on upper floor.  Construction 6,300 sf x $100/sf = $630,000; Design 

10% = $63,000.              
                
                
                 

 
 Project Justification:  Need to replace old ceilings and carpet.  Existing restrooms are not easily accessed by handicapped individuals. 

                
                
                
                 

 
Manager’s Priority Ranking:       
Adjusted Ranking:       
 
 Budget 

Year 
2021-22 

Planning 
Year 

2022-23 

Planning 
Year 

2023-24 

Planning 
Year 

2024-25 

Planning 
Year 

2025-26 

Planning 
Year 

2026-27 
Total 

Project Cost Elements: 
  (list expenditure categories) 
Design & construction 
 

Totals: 

$115,500 $115,500 $115,500 $115,500 $115,500 $115,500 $693,000 

Revenue Sources: 
  (list expenditure categories) 
 
 

Totals: 

       

Annual Operating Budgetary Impact: 
  (list expected annual operating costs and effects) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Net Annual Operating Effect: 

 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

13



Watauga County 
Capital Improvement Plan 

FY 2022 
 
Project Title:  New County Office Building        Requesting Department or Agency:      Administration    __    
 
Fund:         
 Project Description:  Construct  40,000sf office building for County agencies.  This site was prepared during the construction of the Health 

Department in 2005.  Cost 40,000sf x $285sf = $11,400,000; Design $1,140,000 = $12,540,000.      
                
                
                
                 

 
 Project Justification:  Provide offices for County agencies so that space can be reallocated to court agencies in the Courthouse and 

Annex buildings.               
                
                 

 
Manager’s Priority Ranking:       
Adjusted Ranking:       
 
 Budget 

Year 
2021-22 

Planning 
Year 

2022-23 

Planning 
Year 

2023-24 

Planning 
Year 

2024-25 

Planning 
Year 

2025-26 

Planning 
Year 

2026-27 
Total 

Project Cost Elements: 
  (list expenditure categories)                   
 
 

Totals: 

$2,090,000 $2,090,000 $2,090,000 $2,090,000 $2,090,000 $2,090,000 $12,540,000 

Revenue Sources: 
  (list expenditure categories) 
General Fund 
 

Totals: 

       

Annual Operating Budgetary Impact: 
  (list expected annual operating costs and effects) 
Maintenance utilities $114,000 
Two maintenance positions $70,412 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Net Annual Operating Effect: 

$184,412 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

14



Watauga County 
Capital Improvement Plan 

FY 2022 

Project Title:  Human Services Center Parking Lot Requesting Department or Agency:       Maintenance 

Fund:  

Project Description:  Construct a parking lot (82 spaces) in the front of the Human Services Center adjacent to King Street.  Design 
$37,375; Construction $373,750.  

Project Justification:  Additional parking will be needed for the future County Office Building. 

Manager’s Priority Ranking: 
Adjusted Ranking: 

Budget 
Year 

2021-22 

Planning 
Year 

2022-23 

Planning 
Year 

2023-24 

Planning 
Year 

2024-25 

Planning 
Year 

2025-26 

Planning 
Year 

2026-27 
Total 

Project Cost Elements: 
  (list expenditure categories) 
Option 1 

Totals: 

$205,562 $205,562 $411,125 

Revenue Sources: 
  (list expenditure categories) 
General Fund 

Totals: 

$411,125 $411,125 

Annual Operating Budgetary Impact: 
  (list expected annual operating costs and effects) 

Net Annual Operating Effect:  None 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

15



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

16



Watauga County 
Capital Improvement Plan 

FY 2022 

Project Title:  Water Street Parking Deck Requesting Department or Agency:     Maintenance 
Fund:  

Project Description:  Sitework $230,000 + deck construction (11,527 per level x 3 = 34,581 sf x 75 sf) $2,593,575 = $2,823,575.  Design 
$282,358.  Total $3,105,933.  A parking deck or an area designated “Jury Parking Only” on days when jurors are 
reporting for Jury Duty. 

Project Justification: Increase parking opportunities for the public.  Provide approximately 100 new parking spaces.  From January to 
December 2013, an average of 502 people came through the front doors of the Watauga County Courthouse per 
day.  Two weeks each month we average between 60-75 jurors reporting for jury duty.  One of the complaints I hear 
each session of Jury Court is that they could not find anywhere to park.  They don’t complain that they are giving up 
a week of work and often a week of lost wages.  Is it right that we do not have a designated place for them to park 
when they arrive to do their Civic Duty?  It is the norm for Watauga County to have at least two courts in session 
each day and sometimes we have more.  This constitutes a parking quandary for everyone including the staff who 
work in the county and state offices located in or around the courthouse.  With the projected growth of ASU as well 
as the continual increase in the court sessions in Watauga County, it is time to look to the future and plan for the 
ongoing need for parking.  

Manager’s Priority Ranking: 
Adjusted Ranking: 

Budget 
Year 

2021-22 

Planning 
Year 

2022-23 

Planning 
Year 

2023-24 

Planning 
Year 

2024-25 

Planning 
Year 

2025-26 

Planning 
Year 

2026-27 
Total 

Project Cost Elements: 
  (list expenditure categories) 
(Land Cost and architectural fees first year) 

Totals: 

$1,552,966 $1,552,967 $3,105,933 

Revenue Sources: 
  (list expenditure categories) 

Totals: 

$ $ $ 

Annual Operating Budgetary Impact: 
  (list expected annual operating costs and effects) 

Net Annual Operating Effect: 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

17



Watauga County 
Capital Improvement Plan 

FY 2021 
 
Project Title:  Complex 1 Field and Court Renovations    Requesting Department or Agency:          __        
 
Fund:         
 
 Project Description:  Reorient field to new position.  County to provide fill dirt.  Sports lighting $175,000; fencing $65,000; bleacher pads 

$5,000; Earthworks $15,000; drainage $5,000, hydroseeding $2,000; infield mix $3,000; gravel dust $3,000; bases 
$300.  Construct four tennis courts 120’ x 240’, four pickleball courts 60’ x 120’, and one basketball court 60’ x 120’.  
Tennis and pickleball courts will be sloped for sheet drainage.  Project design and plans $18,000(design was paid in 
FY 19-20).   Excavation, paving, gravel, color coat, net/post, fencing, bleachers, trash cans, windscreen $414,507.  
Lighting $48,000.  Total $735,807.            
                 

 
 Project Justification: New site is better suited for new Community Recreation Center and courts.      

                
                 

 
Manager’s Priority Ranking:       
Adjusted Ranking:       
 
 Budget 

Year 
2020-21 

Planning 
Year 

2021-22 

Planning 
Year 

2022-23 

Planning 
Year 

2023-24 

Planning 
Year 

2024-25 

Planning 
Year 

2025-26 
Total 

Project Cost Elements: 
  (list expenditure categories) 
 
 

Totals: 

$735,807      $735.807 

Revenue Sources: 
  (list expenditure categories) 
 
 

Totals: 

       

Annual Operating Budgetary Impact: 
  (list expected annual operating costs and effects) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Net Annual Operating Effect: 

 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

18



X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

BATHROOMS

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

16" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE
16" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE

20" PINE

20" PINE

16" PINE

16" PINE

18" PINE

12" PINE

18" PINE

18" PINE

20" PINE

20" PINE

20" PINE

20" PINE

18" PINE

16" PINE

18" PINE

24" PINE

24" PINE

24" PINE

24" PINE

24" PINE

24" PINE

24" Pine

24" PINE

16" PINE

20" PINE

G

R

A

V

E

L

 

D

R

I

V

E

O

N

E

 

S

T

O

R

Y

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

C

H

A

I

N

 

L

I

N

K

 

F

E

N

C

E

W

O

O

D

E

N

 

F

E

N

C

E

G

R

E

E

N

 

W

A

Y

 

W

A

L

K

I

N

G

 

T

R

A

I

L

C

H

A

I

N

 

L

I

N

K

 

F

E

N

C

E

OHP

OHP

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

X

20" PINE

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

B

L

E

A

C

H

E

R

S

B

L

E

A

C

H

E

R

S

B

L

E

A

C

H

E

R

S

X

1

2

"

 

H

D

P

E

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

O

H

P

B

L

E

A

C

H

E

R

S

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

 

S

I

D

E

W

A

L

K

E

D

G

E

 

O

F

 

A

S

P

H

A

L

T

E

D

G

E

 

O

F

 

A

S

P

H

A

L

T

E

D

G

E

 

O

F

 

A

S

P

H

A

L

T

E

D

G

E

 

O

F

 

W

O

O

D

E

D

 

A

R

E

A

C

H

A

I

N

 

L

I

N

K

 

F

E

N

C

E

C

H

A

I

N

 

L

I

N

K

 

F

E

N

C

E

C

H

A

I

N

 

L

I

N

K

 

F

E

N

C

E

C

H

A

I

N

 

L

I

N

K

 

F

E

N

C

E

E

D

G

E

 

O

F

 

W

O

O

D

E

D

 

A

R

E

A

O

L

D

 

B

O

U

N

D

A

R

Y

 

L

I

N

E

1

2

"

 

C

O

N

C

E

T

E

 

P

I

P

E

1

5

"

 

H

D

P

E

2

4

"

 

H

D

P

E

6

"

 

P

V

C

1

5

"

 

H

D

P

E

1

5

"

 

H

D

P

E

1

5

"
 
H

D

P

E

1

5

"

 

H

D

P

E

1

5

"

 

H

D

P

E

6

'

'

 

S

A

N

6

'

'

 

S

A

N

6

'

'

 

S

A

N

6

'

'

 

S

A

N

6

'

'

 

S

A

N

6

'

'

 

S

A

N

6

"

 

P

V

C

 

S

E

W

E

R

6

'

'

 

S

A

N

6

'

'

 

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N
6

"

 

P

V

C

 

S

E

W

E

R

6

"

 

P

V

C

 

S

E

W

E

R

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

S

A

N

2
4
"
 
H

D

P

E

RIM= 3099.85'

INVERT= 3095.95'

2

4

"

 

H

D

P

E

C

H

A

I

N

 

L

I

N

K

 

F

E

N

C

E

FIELD

LIGHT

SEWER MANHOLE RIM=

3100.62' IN INVERT=

3096.52' OUT INVERT=

3096.50'

C

H

A

I

N

 

L

I

N

K

 

F

E

N

C

E

FIELD

LIGHT

S

H

E

D

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3103.07' INVERT=

3099.36'

POWER

TOWER

CHAIN

LINK

FENCE

UNDERGROUND

NATIONAL GAS

LINE

4" PVC

CLEANOUT

FIELD

LIGHT

BALL

FIELD

FIELD

LIGHT

FIELD

BOX

FIELD

LIGHT

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3101.43' INVERT=

3097.53'

FIELD

LIGHT

WATER

FOUNTAIN

WATER

SPIGOT

WATER

METER

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3101.86' INVERT=

3098.33'

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3102.10' INVERT=

3098.41'

4" PVC

CLEANOUT

FIELD

BOX

FIELD

LIGHT

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3101.90' INVERT=

3097.10'

SEWER MANHOLE RIM=

3103.06' IN INVERT=

3097.16'

OUT INVERT= 3096.96'

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3103.74' INVERT=

3098.40'

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3102.47' INVERT=

3099.83'

FIELD

LIGHT

GRAVEL

PARKING

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3101.32' INVERT=

3098.40'

LIGHT

POLE

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3106.00' INVERT=

3105.27'

4

"

 

P

V

C

 

C

L

E

A

N

O

U

T

LIGHT

POLE

SPEED

BUMP

LIGHT

POLE

TENNIS

COURT

COURT

LIGHT

LIGHT

POLE

COURT

LIGHT

TENNIS

COURT

COURT

LIGHT

COURT

LIGHT

COURT

LIGHT

BASKETBALL

COURT

LIGHT

POLE

BASKETBALL

COURT

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3109.52' INVERT=

3108.04'

4" PVC

CLEANOUT

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3109.34' INVERT=

3107.16'

SEWER MANHOLE RIM=

3110.89' IN INVERT=

3106.29'

OUT INVERT= 3106.09'

LIGHT

POLE

P
IC

N
IC

S
H

E
L
T

E
R

FIELD

LIGHT

LIGHT

POLE

WATER

METER

BLOCK

WALL

1

2

"

 

C

M

P

1

2

"

 

C

O

N

C

.

 

 

P

I

P

E

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3106.14' INVERT=

3103.02'

LIGHT

POLE

BLOCK

WALL

BLOCK

WALL

SPEED

BUMP

GAS

VALVE

LIGHT

POLE

CATCH BASIN RIM=

3105.72' INVERT=

3102.17'

LIGHT

POLE

LIGHT

POLE

BALL

FIELD

1

3103.07

GND

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

(1) BASKETBALL COURT

(2) PICKLEBALL

COURTS

(4) TENNIS COURTS

FUTURE 20' x 60'

PAVILION

SEED OUTFIELD

USE INFIELD MIX

FOR FINISHED GRADE

4' GALVANIZED

CHAIN LINK FENCE

20' SCHEDULE 40

GALVANIZED YELLOW

POWDER COATED

FOUL BALL POLE

20' SCHEDULE 40

GALVANIZED YELLOW

POWDER COATED

FOUL BALL POLE

6'

8'

6'

6'

6'

6'

SOFTBALL FIELD

SCOREBOARD

FIELD DUGOUT, TYP OF (2)

10' HIGH BLACK VINYL-CLAD

CHAIN LINK FENCE

12'

12'

12'

27'

36'

12'

78'

27'

42'

DOUBLE 6' GATE

DOUBLE 6' GATE

DOUBLE 6' GATE

6' GATE

6' GATE

6' GATE

84'

50'

94'

60'

200'

8' GALVANIZED

CHAIN LINK FENCE

8' GALVANIZED

CHAIN LINK FENCE

GRAVEL

DRIVE

BLEACHER PAD, TYP.

GRAVEL DRIVE

SIDEWALK, TYP.

SIDEWALK, TYP.

SEE SHEET C500-C502

FOR COURT DETAILS

C200

S
I
T
E
 
L
A
Y
O

U
T
 
P
L
A
N

N
A

D
 
8

3

0

SCALE 1"=30'

60'30'

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

SCALE

DESIGNED BY

CHECKED BY

D
A
T
E

DRAWN BY

DATE

R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
 
D

E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O

N

Y
O

U
R
 
V
I
S
I
O

N
 
A
C
H

I
E
V
E
D

 
T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 
O

U
R
S
.

T
h
e
s
e
 
p
l
a
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
d
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 
T

I
M

M
O

N
S

 
G

R
O

U
P

 
a
n
d
 
m

a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
r
e
p
r
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
i
n
 
w

h
o
l
e
 
o
r
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
 
a
n
d
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
w

h
a
t
s
o
e
v
e
r
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
n
o
t

l
i
m

i
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
,
 
b
i
d
d
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
s
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
w

i
t
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
p
r
e
s
s
 
w

r
i
t
t
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
T

I
M

M
O

N
S

 
G

R
O

U
P

.

6
1
0
 
E
.
 
M

o
r
e
h
e
a
d
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
,
 
S
u
i
t
e
 
2
5
0
 
 
|
 
C
h
a
r
l
o
t
t
e
,
 
N

C
 
2
8
2
0
2

T
E
L
 
7
0
4
.
6
0
2
.
8
6
0
0
 
 
F
A
X
 
7
0
4
.
3
7
6
.
1
0
7
6
 
 
w

w
w

.
t
i
m

m
o
n
s
.
c
o
m

N
o
r
t
h
 
C
a
r
o
l
i
n
a
 
L
i
c
e
n
s
e
 
N

o
.
 
C
-
1
6
5
2

T
H

I
S
 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D

 
A
T
 
T
H

E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T
E
 
O

F
F
I
C

E

S
:
\
1
0
4
\
4
3
7
8
6
-
W

a
t
a
u
g
a
_
C

o
u
n
t
y
_
P

a
r
k
\
D

W
G

\
S

h
e
e
t
\
C

D
\
4
3
7
8
6
C

-
2
0
0
-
S

I
T

E
.
d
w

g
 
|
 
P

l
o
t
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
1
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
:
0
9
 
P

M
 
|
 
b
y
 
R

a
y
o
n
 
S

a
m

u
e
l
s

8/5/2019

W
A
T
A
U

G
A
 
C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
P
A
R
K

W
A
T
A
U

G
A
 
C
O

U
N

T
Y
,
 
N

O
R
T
H

 
C
A
R
O

L
I
N

A

43786

AS SHOWN

RAS

RAS

BVC

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

CONCRETE BLEACHER PAD

GENERAL NOTES:

1. TAX PARCEL NUMBER: 2910-73-0610-000

2. PROPERTY OWNER: WATAUGA COUNTY

814 W KING STREET

BOONE, NC 28607

2. SITE ADDRESS: 231 COMPLEX DRIVE

BOONE, NC 28607

3. ZONING: OI

4. EXISTING USE: PARKS & RECREATION

5. PROPOSED USE: PARKS & RECREATION

6. TOTAL SITE AREA: 13.199 ACRES

7. DISTURBED ACREAGE: 2.43 ACRES

8. THIS SITE LIES WITHIN FLOOD ZONE 'AE' ACCORDING TO

FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NUMBER

3710291000J DATED DECEMBER 03, 2009.

X

PROPERTY BOUNDARY

CHAIN LINK FENCE

SITE PLAN LEGEND

1. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE TOWN OF BOONE STANDARDS.

2. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY PROPER COVER OVER ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED

UTILITIES.

2. GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING AND AVOIDING ALL UNDERGROUND

UTILITIES. CONTACT NC ONE CALL SERVICE AT 811 PRIOR TO ANY WORK.

GENERAL SITE NOTES:

GRAVEL DRIVE

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

19



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

20



 

 WATAUGA COUNTY 
 
Administration Building, Suite 205 – 814 West King Street – Boone, NC 28607 – (828) 265-8000 

TDD 1-800-735-2962 – Voice 1-800-735-8262 – FAX (828) 264-3230 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners 
   
FROM:  Deron Geouque 
  County Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Community Recreation Center Discussion  
 
DATE:  November 3, 2020 
 
Per Commissioner request, staff has developed three (3) options for consideration regarding the opening 
of the community recreation center. 
 
 Date of 

Opening  
Restrictions  Staff Hours of 

Operation  
Expense Revenue 

Option 1 
Watauga 
High 
School 
Swim Team 
Only 

12/1/2020 Current 
COVID-19 
Restrictions 
and NCHSAA 
Guidelines 
and 
Protocols  

4 Guards 
Nov. 30 
To 
Jan. 30, 
2021 

M-F 
8:00 AM 
5:00 PM 

$27,321 $0 

       

Option 2 
Open at 
30% 
Capacity 

1/18/2021 Current 
COVID-19 
Restrictions 
per the 
Governor’s 
Executive 
Order and 
NCDHHS 
Guidance  

January  
To  
June 2021  
Staffing 
Costs 

M-W-F 
6:00 AM 
8:00 PM 
T-TH-Sat 
8:00 AM 
8:00 PM 
Sun 
12 noon 
5:00 PM 

$187,000 30% of 
Budgeted 
Amount or 
$63,000 

       

Option 3 
Open at 
50% 
Capacity  

TBD COVID-19 
Restrictions 
per the 
Governor’s 
Executive 
Order and 
NCDHHS 
Guidance 

April 
To  
June 2021 
Staffing 
Costs 

M-W-F 
6:00 AM 
8:00 PM 
T-TH-Sat 
8:00 AM 
8:00 PM 
Sun 
12 noon 
5:00 PM 

$102,000 50% of 
Budgeted 
Amount or 
$52,500 

 

   OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY MANAGER 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

21



Option 1  
 
Facility opens to the Watauga High School Swim Team only on December 1, 2020 Monday, Tuesday, 
Thursday, Friday 3:30 PM to 5:00 PM and Wednesday from 3:00 PM to 5:00 PM.  Two (2) lifeguards 
and one (1) custodial position would be necessary to cover the swim practice.  No county 
testing/screening will be conducted.  Coaches are required to follow NCHSAA guidelines and protocols 
to ensure athletes’ safety.  County would require athletes to sign COVID19 waiver.  No other programs 
offered.  Locker rooms closed and family changing rooms utilized.  The facility would operate from 8:00 
AM to 5:00 PM.  Estimated cost is $27,321.  Zero revenues received.   
 
Option 2 
 
Facility opens to the Watauga High School Swim Team and public under the current COVID19 
restrictions limiting capacity to thirty percent (30%).  Facility would open to Swim Team on December 1, 
2020 and the rest of the facility would open on January 18, 2021, approximately two (2) months from 
notice to open to hire & train facility staff.  Occupancy based on percentages established through the 
Health Department and NCDHHS guidelines.  Locker rooms closed.  List of modified programs included 
in the opening plan.  No childcare service provided.  Limited access with the potential for patrons to be 
turned away due to capacity levels.  Estimated cost is $187,000 based on six (6) months of operations.  
$63,000 in revenues based on thirty percent (30%) of budgeted revenues for a six-month period.   
 
Option 3 
 
Facility opens to the Watauga High School Swim Team on December 1, 2020 and remains closed to the 
public until COVID19 restrictions are lifted to allow for at least fifty percent (50%) or higher capacity.  
Require approximately two (2) months from notice to open at higher capacity to hire & train facility staff.  
Occupancy based on percentages established through the Health Department and NCDHHS guidelines.  
Locker rooms closed.  List of modified programs included in the opening plan.  No childcare service 
provided.  Increased access for patrons reducing the potential to be turned away due to capacity.  
Estimated cost is $102,000 based on three (3) months of operations.  $52,500 in revenues based on fifty 
percent (50%) of budgeted revenues for a three-month period. 
 
Summary 
 
Options 2 and 3 are subject to change based on more or less COVID19 restrictions being imposed or 
reduced.  The initial plan for opening the facility would occur once COVID19 restrictions allowed for 
fifty percent (50%) occupancy.  The reason for opening the facility at 50% capacity was threefold.  First, 
the County wanted to review and monitor other facilities and the impact COVID19 restrictions were 
having on their operations since this is a new facility with no operational history to base projections.  
Second, patrons being turned away due to capacity levels.  Third, the prospect to reach projected 
budgeted revenues was higher.   
 
There are slight differences in the operational costs to open the facility at 30% and 50% capacity.  One 
major factor is the amount of months the facility will be open at 30% or 50% capacity.  Right now, we 
know the amount of months at 30% but 50% is unknown until restrictions are lifted to allow for the 
higher capacity.  In addition, due to the delayed opening, the 30% and 50% capacities are more 
manageable from a budgetary perspective.   
 
Staff has provided the best conservative estimates on revenues possible with no historical data.  However, 
should revenues not be met, staff would reduce programming and utilize contingency funds to cover any 
shortfall.  All options have been discussed and reviewed with the Health Department and adhere to 
NCDHHS guidelines.  Staff recommends that if the facility is open to the High School Swim that the rest 
of the facility be open as well.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

22



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

23



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

24



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

25



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

26



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

27



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

28



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

29



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

30



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

31



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

32



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

33



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

34



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

35



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

36



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

37



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

38



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

39



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

40



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

41



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

42



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

43



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

44



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

45



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

46



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

47



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

48



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

49



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

50



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

51



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

52



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

53



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

54



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

55



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

56



2021 Annual Pre-Budget R
etreat

57



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

58



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

59



Watauga County 
Capital Improvement Plan 

FY 2022 
 
Project Title:  Watauga County Public Library Expansion   Requesting Department or Agency:   County Manager          
 
Fund:         
 Project Description:  Expand the Library by (2) bays or 70’ X 96’, 6800 s. f. This expansion was planned into the original design concept 

and should meet the TOB required setbacks.         
 Construction Cost 6,800 s. f. x $250 s. f.  = 1,700,000        
 Design Fee 10%      =    170, 000        
 Contingency 5%             85, 000        
           1,700, 000           
                
                
                 

 
 Project Justification: Library was completed in 1997. The expansion is necessary to meet the county’s growing population needs 

regarding technology (access and instruction) , lifelong learning, promoting reading ( emergent and established 
readers) and having access to a safe, comfortable attractive and welcoming place for all residents.     
                
                
                 

 
Manager’s Priority Ranking:       
Adjusted Ranking:       
 
 Budget 

Year 
2021-22 

Planning 
Year 

2022-23 

Planning 
Year 

2023-24 

Planning 
Year 

2024-25 

Planning 
Year 

2025-26 

Planning 
Year 

2026-27 
Total 

 1,700, 000 1,700, 000 1,700, 000 1,700, 000 1,700, 000 1,700, 000 10,200,000 
Revenue Sources: 
  (list expenditure categories) 
 
 

Totals: 

       

Annual Operating Budgetary Impact: 
  (list expected annual operating costs and effects) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Net Annual Operating Effect: 16,468 

 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

60



1

Anita.Fogle

Subject: FW: Habitat Plea

 
On Mon, Jan 25, 2021 at 3:36 PM Mark Murrey <mark@markmurrey.com> wrote: 

  

Dear Carrington,  

  

I am emailing today about a great need our affiliate is facing.  

  

Watauga Habitat is nearing completion on our first phase of affordable homes in our 
eco-friendly GreenWood Community.  We are breaking ground on the last home in this 
phase in July 2021. We are excited to once again be partnering with Appalachian State 
students for our 3rd App Builds a Home! 

  

We desperately need to extend the road in GreenWood so we can begin the second 
phase of building by the end of this year.  Several years ago, our Executive Director 
(Alex Hooker) and a Board member attended a Commissioners meeting and 
the Commissioners agreed to help us build this next phase of road.  That was some 
time ago and we now really need to begin road construction as soon as possible. 

  

I was told by our ED that the Watauga County Commissioners are having a Retreat in 
Feb. or March and you will discuss this again.  My sincere request is that the 
Commissioners will prioritize this project and begin ASAP.   

  

Carrington,..I would LOVE to meet you in GreenWood at a time convenient for you and 
show you exactly where the road needs to go.  You can see first-hand why we need to 
begin building the road in the coming months.  I think you would love seeing the 
beautiful, simple and affordable homes we are building in Watauga County.  If we are 
able to meet, then Allison Jennings may join us.  

  

Thanks for being the “commish”. 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

61



2

  

Mark 

  

  

  

--  
Sent from Gmail Mobile 
--  
Sent from Gmail Mobile 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

62



1

Anita.Fogle

Subject: FW: Watauga Habitat for Humanity

From: Allison Jennings <allison@wataugahabitat.org> 
Date: January 26, 2021 at 1:10:03 PM EST 
To: <John.Welch@watgov.org>, Charlie Wallin <wallincr@appstate.edu>, <charlie.wallin@watgov.org>, 
<larry.turnbow@watgov.org> 
Cc: Pat McGuire <pmcguire1584@gmail.com> 
Subject: Watauga Habitat for Humanity 

Hello John, Charlie and Larry 
 
I am emailing today about a great need Watauga Habitat for Humanity is 
facing.  
 
I am sure this story will be familiar to you but Watauga Habitat is nearing 
completion on our first phase of affordable homes in our eco-friendly 
GreenWood Community.  We are breaking ground on the last home in this 
phase in July 2021. We are excited to once again be partnering with 
Appalachian State students for our 3rd App Builds a Home! 
 
We desperately need to extend the road in GreenWood so we can begin the 
second phase of building by the end of this year.  I know several years ago, 
our Executive Director (Alex Hooker) and a Board member attended a 
Commissioners meeting and the Commissioners agreed to help us build this 
next phase of road.  That was some time ago and we now really need to 
begin road construction as soon as possible. 
 
I was told by our ED that the Watauga County Commissioners are having a 
Retreat in Feb. or March and you will discuss this again.  My sincere request 
is that the Commissioners will prioritize this project and begin ASAP.   
 
I  would LOVE to meet you in GreenWood at a time convenient for you and 
show you exactly where the road needs to go.  You can see first-hand why 
we need to begin building the road in the coming months.  I think you would 
enjoy seeing the beautiful, simple and affordable homes we are building in 
Watauga County.  
Is there a time you would be able to meet?  Our Board President, Pat 
McGuire would be joining us. We will mask-up, socially-distancing and you 
could also have a private tour of a home we are currently building. 
 
I have already sent an email to Billy about this issue and our Board Member, 
Dr. Mark Murrey has contacted Carrington. 
 
Hope we can schedule a quick outdoor, masked meeting soon in our Habitat 
GreenWood Neighborhood. 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

63



2

 
Here is a link to our website and you can check out some of our build 
projects. 
 
Thank you for all you do to make our community a better place for all who 
live here, 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

64



Facilities Plan
Watauga County Schools Capital Improvement Plan 
*Pending funding for new facilities and renovations.
Rev. 1/29/21

Year 2019/2020 5,295,750$               
Annual Maintenance Items 989,250$                     

Roof Maintenance 45,000$                            
Pavement Repair 160,000$                          

Carpet & Tile Replacement 30,000$                            
Door Replacement 15,000$                            

HVAC Sewer Pump Replacement 10,000$                            
Gym Floor Replacement/Recoat (Mabel) 75,000$                            

Cafeteria Tables 15,000$                            
Replace Kitchen/Cafeteria Equipment 55,000$                            

Band/Arts Program Equipment 40,000$                            
Custodial Floor Equipment 15,000$                            

Vehicle Replacement 85,000$                            
Activity Bus Replacement 95,000$                            

Furniture/ Equipment 69,250$                            
Classroom Presentation Technology 80,000$                            
Student/ Staff Instructional Devices 200,000$                          

Tire Changer 16,500$                        
Security Cameras 100,000$                     
VoIP at Green Valley 65,000$                        
Resurface Tennis Courts at WHS 60,000$                        
Improvements at Central Office 30,000$                        
Fuel Island Upgrades 35,000$                        
Phase 1 Renovations 4,000,000$                  
New Valle Crucis School 35,000,000$                

Year 2020/2021 3,039,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items 1,000,000$                  

Roof Maintenance 45,000$                            
Pavement Repair 160,000$                          

Carpet & Tile Replacement 30,000$                            
Door Replacement 15,000$                            

HVAC Sewer Pump Replacement 10,000$                            
Gym Floor Replacement/Recoat (Blowing Rock) 75,000$                            

Cafeteria Tables 15,000$                            
Replace Kitchen/Cafeteria Equipment 55,000$                            

Band/Arts Program Equipment 40,000$                            
Custodial Floor Equipment 15,000$                            

Vehicle Replacement 95,000$                            
Activity Bus Replacement 95,000$                            

Furniture/ Equipment 70,000$                            
Classroom Presentation Technology 80,000$                            

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

65



Student/ Staff Instructional Devices 200,000$                          
Resurface Weight Room at WHS 24,000$                        
VoIP 65,000$                        
Landscape Area Around Foundation at Cove Creek 15,000$                        
Phase 1 Renovations 2,000,000$                  

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

66



Year 2021/2022 4,245,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items 1,000,000$                  
Roof Maintenance 80,000$                        
Pavement Repair 200,000$                     
Carpet and Tile Replacement 45,000$                        
Door Replacement 20,000$                        
HVAC/Sewer Pump Replacement 25,000$                        
Gym Floor Screening and Recoat 20,000$                        
Cafeteria Tables 15,000$                        
Replace Kitchen/Cafeteria Equipment 55,000$                        
Band/Arts Program Equipment 40,000$                        
Custodial Floor Equipment 15,000$                        
Vehicle Replacement 95,000$                        
Activity Bus Replacement 95,000$                        
Furniture/Equipment 70,000$                        
Classroom Presentation Technology 80,000$                        
Student/Staff Instructional Devices 200,000$                     
Learning Cottage/Classroom - Hardin Park 125,000$                     
VoIP 65,000$                        
Phase 1 Renovations 2,000,000$                  

Year 2022/2023 3,290,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,000,000$                  
Add Generator to Maintenance Building 75,000$                        
Install Truck Wash @ Trans. 100,000$                     
HVAC Replacement @ Central Office 115,000$                     
Phase 1 Renovations 2,000,000$                  

Year 2023/2024 1,770,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,025,000$                  
Bulk Storage for Salt & Sand 350,000$                     
Renovate Parts Room 35,000$                        
Upgrade Central Food Storage 25,000$                        
Painting @ WHS 35,000$                        
Phase 1 Renovations Design at Remaining Schools 300,000$                     

Year 2024/2025 3,590,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,025,000$                  
Upgrade Central Exhausts @ Bus Garage 50,000$                        
Upgrades @ Central Office 150,000$                     
Add Additional Parking @ Central Office 240,000$                     
Add Lift for Service Vehicles 25,000$                        
Replace Dump Truck 100,000$                     
Phase 1 Renovations 2,000,000$                  

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

67



Year 2025/2026 3,100,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,050,000$                  
Misc. Painting and Maint. @  Central Services 50,000$                        
Phase 1 Renovations 2,000,000$                  

Year 2026/2027 1,050,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,050,000$                  

Year 2027/2028 3,050,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,050,000$                  
Phase 1 Renovations 2,000,000$                  

Year 2028/2029 3,075,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,075,000$                  
Phase 1 Renovations 2,000,000$                  

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

68



Year 2029/2030 3,575,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,075,000$                  
Hardin Park Design 2,500,000$                  

Year 2030/2031 1,600,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,100,000$                  
Phase 2 Renovations Design 500,000$                     

Year 2031/2032 92,300,000$            
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,100,000$                  
Construct New Facility at Hardin Park 85,000,000$                

Year 2032/2033 3,100,000$               
Annual Maintenance Items (same as above) 1,100,000$                  
Phase 2 Renovations 2,000,000$                  

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

69



Facilities Plan Cash Flow
Watauga County Schools Capital Improvement Plan 
*Pending funding for new facilities.

Rev. 3/22/19

CIP Long Term
Budget Year Reserves Balance Capital Balance
2018-2019 1,224,005$             3,012,946$             

Expenditures 500,000$                400,000$                
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2019-2020 1,224,005$             4,112,946$             
Expenditures 510,750$                4,000,000$             
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2020-2021 1,213,255$             1,612,946$             
Expenditures 379,000$                2,000,000$             
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2021-2022 1,334,255$             1,112,946$             
Expenditures 315,000$                2,000,000$             
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2022-2023 1,519,255$             612,946$                
Expenditures 1,540,000$             2,000,000$             
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2023-2024 479,255$                112,946$                
Expenditures 720,000$                300,000$                
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2025-2026 259,255$                1,312,946$             
Expenditures 350,000$                2,000,000$             
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2026-2027 409,255$                812,946$                
Expenditures 300,000$                -$                         
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2027-2028 609,255$                2,312,946$             
Expenditures 300,000$                2,000,000$             
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2028-2029 809,255$                1,812,946$             
Expenditures 325,000$                2,000,000$             
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2029-2030 984,255$                1,312,946$             
Expenditures 325,000$                1,500,000$             
Revenues 500,000$                1,500,000$             

2030-2031 1,159,255$             1,312,946$             

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

70



Initial Report - October/September 2020
Board Presentation – February 2021

Phase II Study
Organic Composting

Watauga County, NC

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

71



Baker Advisors, Inc.      Coker Composting & Consulting
Winston Salem, NC       Troutville, VA

OPTION 1
Combine the existing operations of 
Watauga County’s organic recycling with a 
composting operation  

(3,075 CY of annual production)
Sized to match woody waste debris flow and site

• Capital Requirements 
• Civil Costs: 310 k$ to 350k$
• Equipment Costs: 200 k$ to 230k$

• Projected Positive Cash Flow, Years 1 through 3
• 110 k$ annually on startup volume
• 185 k$ annually on full volume

• Headcount Impact: 
• 1 Full Time Equivalent Employee

• Sufficient Nitrogenous Feedstocks Exist

Summary of Options

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

72



Baker Advisors, Inc.      Coker Composting & Consulting
Winston Salem, NC       Troutville, VA

OPTION 2

Improve the quality of soils and mulches 
manufactured

• Watauga has made exceptional progress
• Grinding
• Screening

Summary of Options

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

73



Baker Advisors, Inc.      Coker Composting & Consulting
Winston Salem, NC       Troutville, VA

OPTION 3

Outsource composting operations to a third 
party

• An operation on the same footprint with an 
operational LCID would result in:
• Additional costs
• Lower margins
• Increased risks

• Contractor would likely require a larger facility 
with waste receipt from outside the County

• Probably requires acquiring additional land for a 
stand alone facility

Summary of Options

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

74



Baker Advisors, Inc.      Coker Composting & Consulting
Winston Salem, NC       Troutville, VA

OPTION 4

Transportation of excess wood wastes in 
the form of preprocessed product to other 
composters landscape yards

• Watauga has received interest and is now 
availing itself of a local supplier 
• This option could be temporary or permanent
• Depends on ongoing interest and market conditions

• Study results model hauling single ground 
product to nearby composters
• Would result in higher operating costs

Summary of Options

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

75



Baker Advisors, Inc.      Coker Composting & Consulting
Winston Salem, NC       Troutville, VA

• Composting is a biological manufacturing 
process for recycling organics (food 
wastes, woody wastes, industrial residuals)

• Phase 1 - Small facility handling 750 
tons/year of food-related wastes and 1,500 
tons/year of woody wastes, producing 
3,075 CY of compost annually to be sold
• Needs about 1.2 acres of LCID site
• Would use aerated static pile composting 

(fans blowing air through perforated 
piping below compostables)

• Easily expandable if needed

Composting

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

76



Baker Advisors, Inc.      Coker Composting & Consulting
Winston Salem, NC       Troutville, VA

• Initial conceptual layout
• To reduce costs, need to stay away from 

LCID-filled areas

Composting

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

77



Baker Advisors, Inc.      Coker Composting & Consulting
Winston Salem, NC       Troutville, VA

Composting – Capital Costs

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

78



Baker Advisors, Inc.      Coker Composting & Consulting
Winston Salem, NC       Troutville, VA

Composting - Capital Cost

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

79



 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

80



 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

81



 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

82



Baker Advisors, Inc.      Coker Composting & Consulting
Winston Salem, NC       Troutville, VA

Initial Steps Completed

McGill has evaluated combining the MSW 
trailer storage leachate collection with the 
proposed compost operation

LCID Phase 1 and 2 investigation
• Historical review
• Soil borings

Important because NCDEQ requirements 
for a compost facility built on or near LCID

Resulted in a new proposed layout by 
McGill

Composting

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

83



Baker Advisors, Inc.      Coker Composting & Consulting
Winston Salem, NC       Troutville, VA

Potential Next Steps

Composting – Stand Alone Facility

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

84



LIMITS OF PHASE 1

CONSTRUCTION

TW 3219
BW 3214

TW 3220
BW 3215.5

TW 3217.5
BW 3213

TW 3222
BW 3217

TW 3225
BW 3220 TW 3226

BW 3223

3213.0

3214.2

TW 3213.5
BW 3210.5

PROPOSED INLET

TOP EL.: 3205.5

INV. EL.: ±3202.7(VERIFY IN FIELD)

INVERT IN (24") EL.: 3202.7

INVERT IN (15") EL.: 3203.0

PROPOSED 24" CMP STORM DRAIN

W/ENDWALL

INVERT EL.: 3206.8

FIELD LOCATE PERMANENT DIVERSION BERMS

AVOID OBSTACLES AND MAINTAIN POSITIVE DRAINAGE

INSTALL AT 4% MAXIMUM SLOPE WHERE FEASIBLE

VERIFY LOCATION IN FIELD

NOTE:

THIS OPTION ALLOWS BOTH SCALES AND SCALEHOUSE TO BE BUILT

OFF LINE. EXISTING SCALE REMOVED AFTER NEW WORK IS

COMPLETELY OPERATIONAL

1

2

'

3

0

'

1

0

'

2

2

'

2

'

PROPOSED INLET

TOP EL.: 3207.5

INVERT EL.: 3203.5

BOTH PIPES ARE 15" CMP

PROPOSED INLET

TOP EL.: 3213.5

INVERT EL.: 3209.5

ALL PIPES ARE 15" CMP

3

2

1

0

.
7

3

2

1

0

.
7

3

2

1

2

.
1

3

2

1

2

.
0

3

2

1

1

.
9

3

2

1

2

.
1

3

2

1

1

.
3

3

2

1

1

.
9

3

2

1

1

.
4

Y.H.

FH

?

C.O.

INSTALL APPROXIMATELY 220 L.F. OF 8" D.I.P. SEWER LINE

WITH MANHOLES

INSTALL APPROXIMATELY 35 L.F. 4" PVC SEWER SERVICE

WITH CLEANOUTS TO NEW SCALEHOUSE

INSTALL APPROXIMATELY 260 L.F. OF 2" TYPE-2 COPPER WATERLINE TO

EXISTING ADMIN BUILDING AND NEW SCALEHOUSE

INSTALL YARD HYDRANT FOR SCALE AREA WASHDOWN

INSTALL 2 - 2" BALL VALVES AT WATERLINE TEE

INSTALL NEW 12-FOOT WIDE TURNING LANE, APPROXIMATELY 150 L.F.

 INSTALL APPROXIMATELY 630 L.F. OF 6" or  8" (MATCH EXISTING ) D.I.P. WATERLINE

 INSTALL APPROXIMATELY 280 L.F. OF 8" PVC SEWER LINE

WITH MANHOLES

 INSTALL NEW FIRE HYDRANT TO SERVICE RECYCLING FACILITY

RELOCATE EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AND INSTALL NEW METER FOR BOTH EXISTING

ADMIN BUILDING AND NEW SCALEHOUSE

INSTALL NEW SERVICE TAP FROM NEW WATERLINE

TO EXISTING WATER METER

TW: 3215.1

TW: 3215.1

TW: 3215.1

TW: 3215.1

TW: 3216.0

TW: 3214.6

TW: 3215.1

TW: 3215.1

TW: 3216.0

TW: 3216.0

TW: 3215.1

3216.0

3215.1

TW: 3216.0

TW: 3214.6

TW: 3215.1

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

S

C

A

L

E

 
E

L

E

V

.
:
 
3

2

1

4

.
6

S

C

A

L

E

 
E

L

E

V

.
:
 
3

2

1

4

.
6

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

A

P

P

R

O

A

C

H

 
S

L

A

B

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

A

P

P

R

O

A

C

H

 
S

L

A

B

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

A

P

P

R

O

A

C

H

 
S

L

A

B

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

A

P

P

R

O

A

C

H

 
S

L

A

B

WM

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E
P

A

V

I
N

G

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E
P

A

V

I
N

G

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E
P

A

V

I
N

G

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E
P

A

V

I
N

G

PROPOSED __" CMP STORM DRAIN

W/ENDWALL

INVERT EL.: TO BE DETERMINED IN FIELD

TO PROVIDE 2% MIN. SLOPE TO EXISTING

STORM DRAINAGE PIPE INVERT

C

L

 
W

I
N

D

O

W

1

1

'
-

6

"

C

L

 
W

I
N

D

O

W

1

1

'
-

6

"

8

'
-
4

"

S

C

A

L

E

 
H

O

U

S

E

 
B

U

I
L

D

I
N

G

F

F

 
E

L

E

V

:
 
3

2

1

6

.
1

CONCEPTUAL OPTION 1

55 Broad Street

Asheville, NC 28801

828.252.0575

NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com

WATAUGA COUNTY,  NORTH CAROLINA

WATAUGA COUNTY

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

20 0 10 20 40

20

0

MDC

JRB

DAP

JRB JULY 2019 14.00708 N/A

C-101

P
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
2
-
W

A
T

A
U

G
A

C
O

N
C

-
S

C
A

L
E

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
S

O
L
I
D

 
W

A
S

T
E

\
C

O
N

C
E

P
T

U
A

L
\
C

O
N

C
E

P
T

 
1
 
W

A
T

A
U

G
A

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 
L
F

 
S

C
A

L
E

 
H

O
U

S
E

.
D

W
G

 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
 
1
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0
 
1
0
:
5
3
 
A

M
 
D

A
V

E
 
P

A
S

K
O

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

R

CA
LL

811 BEFORE YOUDGI

SAFE   DIGGING   PARTNER

WATAUGA  COUNTY LANDFILL

SCALE IMPROVMENT PROJECT

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

85

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ADMIN BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RED PAINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL PED

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" CMP ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE 3217.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E.: 3202.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP 8" DIP EL: 3182.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP 8" DIP EL: 3182.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MHSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PVC ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN GRATE EL: 3211.24' 4" PVC (E) I.E.: 3209.56' 4" PVC (N) I.E.: 3209.39' 15" CMP (E) I.E.: 3205.95' 15" CMP (N) I.E.: 3205.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PVC ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN GRATE EL: 3213.53' 4" PVC (E) I.E.: 3211.89' 15" CMP (W) I.E.: 3208.43' 15" CMP (S) I.E.: 3208.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" PVC I.E.: 3206.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" PVC ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" CMP I.E.: 3206.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E.: 3200.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E.: 3203.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" CMP ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E.: 3213.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E.: 3183.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN GRATE EL: 3190.53' 18" CMP (NW) I.E.: 3186.95' 18" CMP (SE) I.E.: 3187.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E.: 3190.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE TOP EL: 3187.09' 8" PVC (E) I.E.: 3184.59' 8" PVC (S) I.E.: 3182.33' 8" PVC (W) I.E.: 3181.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE TOP EL: 3216.36' 8" PVC (N) I.E.: 3208.60' 8" PVC (S) I.E.: 3207.82' 8" PVC (W) I.E.: 3207.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3182

AutoCAD SHX Text
3186

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3248

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3248

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3204

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3204

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" CPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" CPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E.: 3222.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN GRATE EL: 3221.51' 15" CMP (NW) I.E.: 3219.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E.: 3230.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E.: 3235.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP 8" DIP EL: 3182.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP 8" DIP EL: 3182.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/CAMERA MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/CAMERA MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-4", TYP.FOR BOTH SCALES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR SEPARATION BETWEEN BUILDING AND SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



FINAL GRADING AND EROSION

CONTROL PLAN

55 Broad Street

Asheville, NC 28801

828.252.0575

NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com WATAUGA COUNTY,  NORTH CAROLINA

WATAUGA COUNTY SOLID WASTE 

SEDIMENT BASIN IMPROVEMENTS

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

30 15 30 60

30

0

M. CATHEY

S. BURWELL

N. SAWYER

S. BURWELL DECEMBER 2020 20.00705 N/A

C-103

R

CA
LL

811 BEFORE YOUD GI

SAFE   DIGGING   PARTNER

PLAN

P
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
5
-
W

A
T

A
U

G
A

C
O

N
C

-
S

E
D

I
M

E
N

T
 
B

A
S

I
N

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
C

I
V

I
L
\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
5
_
P

L
A

N
 
1
2
-
0
7
-
2
0
2
0
.
D

W
G

 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
 
1
2
/
8
/
2
0
2
0
 
8
:
3
8
 
A

M
 
N

A
T

A
L
I
E

 
C

R
O

O
M

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

2
0
.
0
0
7
0
5
 
 
W

A
T

A
U

G
A

 
S

O
L
I
D

 
W

A
S

T
E

 
 
 
S

E
D

I
M

E
N

T
 
B

A
S

I
N

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

LEGEND

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

86

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
MHSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP EL:3216.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4.4%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE AND SCALE HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDFILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3160

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3170

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3199

AutoCAD SHX Text
3201

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3165

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3239

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3204

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3226

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3224

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3175

AutoCAD SHX Text
3175

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3160

AutoCAD SHX Text
3170

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3199

AutoCAD SHX Text
3201

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3165

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3239

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3204

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3226

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3224

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3175

AutoCAD SHX Text
3175

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3216

AutoCAD SHX Text
3217

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
2921-30-3252-000 MARKOVICH PROPERTIES INC DB 1673/PG 792

AutoCAD SHX Text
2920-39-7780-000 WATAUGA COUNTY DB 252/PG 739

AutoCAD SHX Text
2921-30-0232-000 PEGASUS CAPITAL PARTNERS LLC DB 2081/PG 377

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE ±1.70 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RIP-RAP LINED EMERGENCY SPILLWAY ELEVATION: 3192.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 36" HDPE BARREL 92 LF @ 5.43% SLOPE INVERT IN: 3185.0 INVERT OUT: 3180.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE (SEE DETAIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OCS OUTLET PROTECTION (SEE DETAIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OUTLET PROTECTION FOR PROPOSED DITCH #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OUTLET PROTECTION FOR EXISTING DITCH #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OUTLET PROTECTION FOR EXISTING DITCH #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PROPERTY LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PIPE INLET PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED NAG S150 MATTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RIPRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PERMANENT DITCH WITH NAG S150 DITCH MATTING OR APPROVED EQUAL(TYP) (SEE DETAILS EC-7 AND EC-10 ON SHEET C-501

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PERMANENT DITCH #3 WITH NAG S150 DITCH MATTING OR APPROVED EQUAL(TYP) (SEE DETAILS EC-7 AND EC-10 ON SHEET C-501

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SILT FENCE OUTLET (TYP) (SEE DETAIL EC-2 ON SHEET C-501)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WETLAND AREA (NOT TO BE DISTURBED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SILT FENCE OUTLET (TYP) (SEE DETAIL EC-2 ON SHEET C-501)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SLOPE MATTING WITH NAG MATTING OR APPROVED EQUAL. (SEE DETAIL EC-11 ON SHEET C-501)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STRAW-COCONUT SLOPE MATTING APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER. (SEE DETAIL EC-11 ON SHEET C-501)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED POROUS BAFFLES (TYP) (SEE DETAIL EC-41 ON SHEET C-502

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 4'x4' CONC. RISER WITH 6" PIPE INLET WITH 6" SKIMMER AND 3.5" ORIFICE RISER ELEVATION: 3189.0 (SEE DETAIL, SEE NOTE THIS SHEET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL RUTTING TO BE REPAIRED. RIP RAP TO BE PLACED ONCE REPAIRS ARE MADE TO MATCH RIP-RAP SIZE, THICKNESS, AND FABRIC UNDERLAYMENT TO PROPOSED DOWNSTREAM OUTLET PROTECTION.



MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS

55 Broad Street

Asheville, NC 28801

828.252.0575

NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com WATAUGA COUNTY,  NORTH CAROLINA

WATAUGA COUNTY SOLID WASTE 

SEDIMENT BASIN IMPROVEMENTS

NOT TO SCALE

M. CATHEY

S. BURWELL

N. SAWYER

S. BURWELL DECEMBER 2020 20.00705 N/A

C-502

R

CA
LL

811 BEFORE YOUD GI

SAFE   DIGGING   PARTNER

P
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
5
-
W

A
T

A
U

G
A

C
O

N
C

-
S

E
D

I
M

E
N

T
 
B

A
S

I
N

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
C

I
V

I
L
\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
5
_
P

L
A

N
 
1
2
-
0
7
-
2
0
2
0
.
D

W
G

 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
 
1
2
/
8
/
2
0
2
0
 
8
:
3
8
 
A

M
 
N

A
T

A
L
I
E

 
C

R
O

O
M

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

PIPE INLET PROTECTION

EC

18

UPDATED MARCH, 2017

NOT TO SCALE

POROUS BAFFLE DETAIL

UPDATED MARCH, 2017

EC

41

NOT TO SCALE

PIPE OUTLET PROTECTION

EC

17

C

C

D

D

OR

UPDATED MARCH, 2017

NOT TO SCALE

2
0
.
0
0
7
0
5
 
 
W

A
T

A
U

G
A

 
S

O
L
I
D

 
W

A
S

T
E

 
 
 
S

E
D

I
M

E
N

T
 
B

A
S

I
N

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

SKIMMER SEDIMENT BASIN SCHEDULE

TOP

BERM

ELEV.

(ft)

EMERGENCY

SPILLWAY

(D x WIDTH)

SKIMMER

INVERT

ELEV. (ft)

BASIN

SIDE

SLOPE

RATIO

BASIN

SPILLWAY

LENGTH

(FT)

BASIN

SPILLWAY

WIDTH

(FT)

SKIMMER

SIZE (IN)

SKIMMER

ORIFICE

SIZE (IN)

BASIN

DEPTH

(FT)

BASIN

BOTTOM

LENGTH

(FT)

BASIN

BOTTOM

WIDTH

(FT)

BASIN #

RISER TOP

ELEV (ft)

PRIMARY

SPILLWAY

(D x WIDTH)

OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE DETAIL

CREATED FOR THIS PROJECT

NOT TO SCALE

TEMPORARY SKIMMER BASIN with RISER

EC

28

UPDATED MARCH, 2017

NOT TO SCALE

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

87

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INVERT, 36"   MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER BERM NC DOT #5 OR #57 WASHED STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP-RAP HEADWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP-RAP HEADWALL 1' MIN. HEIGHT FROM ROAD SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STABILIZED GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STABILIZED GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLASS B RIP-RAP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLASS B RIP-RAP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NC DOT #5 OR #57

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHED STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' CREST WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUPPORT POSTS, 24" MIN. BURY INTO BOTTOM OR SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAKE TO  SUPPORT WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
700 g/m  COIR MESH OR SIMILAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. INLET ZONE (A) SHOULD HAVE 25% OF SURFACE INLET ZONE (A) SHOULD HAVE 25% OF SURFACE AREA. FIRST CELL (B) SHOULD HAVE 25% OF SURFACE AREA, SECOND CELL (C) SHOULD HAVE 25% OF SURFACE AREA AND THE OUTLET ZONE (D) SHOULD HAVE 25% OF SURFACE AREA. 2. GRADE THE BASIN SO THAT THE BOTTOM IS GRADE THE BASIN SO THAT THE BOTTOM IS LEVEL FRONT TO BACK AND SIDE TO SIDE. 3. STEEL POSTS SHOULD BE DRIVEN TO A DEPTH STEEL POSTS SHOULD BE DRIVEN TO A DEPTH OF 24 INCHES, SPACED A MAXIMUM OF 4 FEET APART. 4. DO NOT SPLICE FABRIC. USE ONE CONTINUOUS DO NOT SPLICE FABRIC. USE ONE CONTINUOUS PIECE ACROSS BASIN. 5. INSPECT BAFFLES AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK AND INSPECT BAFFLES AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK AND AFTER EACH RAINFALL. MAKE ANY REPAIRS IMMEDIATELY. REMOVE SEDIMENT DEPOSITS WHEN IT REACHES HALF FULL. 6. REFERENCE NCDEQ LAND QUALITY SECTION REFERENCE NCDEQ LAND QUALITY SECTION DESIGN MANUAL: 6.65.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF FABRIC SHOULD BE 6" HIGHER THAN SPILLWAY INVERT. TOP OF BAFFLES SHOULD BE 2" LOWER THAN TOP OF THE BERM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-0" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECOND CHAMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
25%%% OF SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (C)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST CHAMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
25%%% OF SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (B)

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25%%% OF SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (A)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLET ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25%%% OF SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES :

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAFFLE SPACING OF 25%%% EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER NEW NCDEQ RECOMMENDATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PLANS FOR BAFFLE SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
9 GAUGE HIGH STRENGTH TENSION WIRE STRAND - SECURE TO EACH POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE POST SUPPORT OR 9 GAUGE WIRE TO SIDE OF BASIN  - SECURE TO VERTICAL POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURE BOTTOM OF BAFFLE TO GROUND w/ 12" STAPLES @ 12" MAX. SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASINS LESS THAN 20' LONG REQUIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO (2) COIR BAFFLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAFFLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMBANKMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLASS I RIP-RAP OUTLET  

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION D-D

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION C-C

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  La IS THE LENGTH OF THE RIPRAP APRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.  d= 1.5 TIMES THE MAXIMUM STONE DIAMETER BUT NOT LESS THAN 6".

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.  IN A WELL-DEFINED CHANNEL EXTEND THE APRON UP THE CHANNEL BANKS TO AN ELEVATION OF 6" ABOVE THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM TAILWATER DEPTH OR TO THE TOP OF THE BANK, WHICHEVER IS LESS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.  FILTER FABRIC SHOULD BE INSTALLED BETWEEN THE RIPRAP AND SOIL FOUNDATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.  REFERENCE NCDEQ LAND QUALITY SECTION DESIGN MANUAL: 6.41.

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIPRAP APRON SIZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Do)

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP DITCH 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
(W=Do+La)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(La)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 x Do

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRON LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRON WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
( 50xTHICKNESS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIPRAP SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION B-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE OUTLET TO WELL-DEFINED CHANNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE OUTLET TO FLAT AREA-

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO WELL DEFINED CHANNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION A-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST DITCH 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST DITCH 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMP SPILLWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. LENGTH AND WIDTH ARE BASED ON DIMENSIONS AT THE ELEVATION OF THE PRIMARY SPILLWAY.LENGTH AND WIDTH ARE BASED ON DIMENSIONS AT THE ELEVATION OF THE PRIMARY SPILLWAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMP SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
3191'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
218'

AutoCAD SHX Text
108'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
3194'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3189'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
238'

AutoCAD SHX Text
108'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM SPILLWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' x 4' BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1 EMBANKMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE TO EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PVC DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
#57 STONE PLACED  AROUND DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUTED RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" HDPE BARREL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUTED RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
#57 STONE PLACED AROUND DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PVC DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERFORATED PVC PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE RING AND COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT STORAGE ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DE-WATERING ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFLOW STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY SPILLWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0" MIN. TO INVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF SPILLWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'x6' CONC. BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
w. #4 REBAR @ 12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.C. (BOTH WAYS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE ; SEE EROSION CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN FOR ACTUAL CONFIGURATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLET PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP RAP LEVELING PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDER SKIMMER TO PREVENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDING OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'X4' PRECAST RISER BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH TRASH RACK (TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV IS SET AT BASIN DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDICATED ON PLAN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAFFLES TO BE 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHER THAN BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH INDICATED ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEND VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFRONT VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLEXIBLE HOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHEDULE 40 PVC PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIFICE PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHEDULE 40 PVC PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC VENT PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
END CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC ELBOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC END CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC PIPE  " HOLES 12" HOLES IN UNDERSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTOP VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER ENTRY UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
"C" ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" ORIF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AFTER SKIMMER IS INSTALLED CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTE SKIMMER SIZE OF ORIFICE INSTALLED W/ A PERMANENT MARKER - NOTATION TO BE VISIBLE OUTSIDE OF BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP DESIGN SURFACE AREA ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN EDGES OF FABRIC DOWN MIN. 12" INTO GROUND  - TAMP AND COMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINER TO EXTEND UP SIDES OF WEIR MIN 12" - TYP. BOTH SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL EMERGENCY SPILLWAYS SHALL BE LINED IN ACCORDANCE W/ NCDEQ STDS. FABRIC SHALL BE TERRATEX GS - INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRY LINER DOWN TO EXISTING GRADE (EDGE OF DISTURBANCE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STAKE OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP-RAP LEVELING PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDER SKIMMER (CLASS B

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE PAD 4'x4'x1' MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC PIPE (SAME SIZE AS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKIMMER OR LARGER) w/

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL BEDDING (1' HIGH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' TO 10' WIDE FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER BASINS (10' IF

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER 10' FILL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARM ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6' MIN. LENGTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFLOW STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIPRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMBANKMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAFFLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN SILT FENCE  INTO DAM SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUT/BREAK SILT FENCE AT SPILLWAY AND OUTLET DISSIPATORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEED OR MAT SLOPES OF SKIMMER BASIN FOR STABILIZATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE ENERGY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISSIPATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY SPILLWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO INCLUDE IMPERVIOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'x4' CONC. RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOX OR SOLID WALL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE w/ TRASH RACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP RAP LEVELING PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDER SKIMMER TO PREVENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDING OUT



Watauga County Sign - Bidders List  
 
 
CONFIRMED 
 

1. Appalachian Sign co. located in Boone 
laura@appalachiansigns.com 
898 W king st, Boone 28607 
828-265-1141 

 
2. Fastsigns-located in asheville 

nikki.swafford@fastsigns.com 
828-222-0096 

 
 

3. Snyder Signs  
charity@snydersigns.com 
2918 creekmoore dr, johnson city, tn 37601 
423-282-6221 

 
4. pittman signs - spruce pine 

pittmansigns@gmail.com 
54 Skyhook Lane, Spruce Pine, NC 28777 
828-765-9535 

 
5. sales@aoasigns.com  

336-679-3344 
214 E. Cherry Street, yadkinville 
 

6. Brenda Dunaway 
bdunaway@apcosigns.com  
704-975-6794 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

88



PROPOSED SIGNAGE PLAN

55 Broad Street

Asheville, NC 28801

828.252.0575

NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com WATAUGA COUNTY,  NORTH CAROLINA

WATAUGA COUNTY

OPERATIONAL ASSISTANCE 

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

0080 40 80 160

80

M. CATHEY

M. CATHEY 

A. WALDROUP

M. CATHEY OCTOBER 2020 19.00708 N/A

C-101

FOR

REVIEW

ONLY

PLAN

P
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
.
0
0
7
1
3
-
W

A
T

A
U

G
A

C
O

N
C

-
L
A

N
D

F
I
L
L
 
S

T
R

I
P

I
N

G
 
A

N
D

 
S

I
G

N
A

\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
S

O
L
I
D

 
W

A
S

T
E

\
1
9
.
0
0
7
0
8
 
-
 
W

C
L
-
S

I
G

N
A

G
E

 
P

L
A

N
.
D

W
G

 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
 
1
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
1
 
1
1
:
0
2
 
A

M
 
A

D
A

M
 
W

A
L
D

R
O

U
P

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

WATAUGA COUNTY LANDFILL 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

89

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
US HWY 421 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 18



Transfer Station
Bulk non-bagged  
residential &  
commercial waste

Convenience 
Center
Bagged residential  
trash & recyclables

Land Clearing &  
Inert Debris
Brush, stumps,  
yard waste, brick,  
block, dirt & asphalt

Recycling Facility
Electronics, scrap metal 
& white goods

What Are You Dropping Off?

1

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

90



Transfer Station
Bulk non-bagged  
residential &  
commercial waste

Convenience 
Center
Bagged residential  
trash & recyclables

Land Clearing &  
Inert Debris
Brush, stumps,  
yard waste, brick,  
block, dirt & asphalt

Recycling Facility
Electronics, scrap metal 
& white goods

What Are You Dropping Off?

2

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

91



Transfer Station
500 feet straight ahead

Land Clearing &  
Inert Debris
First left after  
Area 2 / Transfer Station

Recycling Facility
Turn right at 
Area 2: Transfer Station

Where Do You Want to Go?

3

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

92



Recycling 
Facility

4

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

93



Outbound 
Weight

5

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

94



Outbound 
Weight

6

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

95



Do Not  
Enterx

7

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

96



Landfill 
Personnel 
Only Past  
This Point

x
8

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

97



Residential 
Users

Commercial  
Users

9

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

98



Commercial 
Waste Drop-Off 
Area

10

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

99



Commercial 
Waste Drop-Off

11

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

100



Land Clearing 
& Inert Debris 
Landfill

12

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

101



Land Clearing 
& Inert Debris 
Landfill

13

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

102



14

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

103



Brush, 
Stumps &  
Yard Waste

19

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

104



Brick, 
Block, 
Dirt & 
Asphalt

20

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

105



SITE LAYOUT PLAN

55 Broad Street

Asheville, NC 28801

828.252.0575

NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com TOWN OF BOONE,  NORTH CAROLINA

WATAUGA COUNTY

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

10 0 5 10 20

10

0

M. CATHEY

M. OETTING

R.L. COX

A. WALDROUP JULY, 2020 20.00704 N/A

C-101

P

R

E

L

I

M

I

N

A

R

Y

R

CA
LL

811 BEFORE YOUDGI

SAFE   DIGGING   PARTNER

PLAN

P
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
4
-
W

A
T

A
U

G
A

C
O

N
C

-
T

R
A

I
L
E

R
 
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 
A

R
E

A
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
X

-
R

E
F

\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
4
_
W

A
T

A
G

U
A

 
C

O
 
T

R
A

I
L
E

R
 
A

R
E

A
 
P

L
A

N
.
D

W
G

 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
 
7
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
0
 
1
:
1
7
 
P

M
 
R

U
S

S
E

L
L
 
C

O
X

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

TRAILER STAGING AREA IMPROVEMENTS

WATAUGA COUNTY LANDFILL

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

106

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. 8" THICK CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDING GEAR PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE DETAIL ON SHEET C-502)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,500 GAL. 2-COMPARTMENT SEPTIC TANK FOR COLLECTION OF SOLIDS AND FLOATABLES (REFER TO DETAIL ON C-504)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. LEACHATE COLLECTION FLUME (REFER TO DETAIL ST-33 ON C-502)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WHEEL STOP BARRIER (REFER TO DETAIL ON C-502)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTERNATE 1 8" CONC. TRAILER TIRE PAD (REFER TO DETAIL ON C-501)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT DOGHOUSE M.H. OVER EXIST. SEWER LINE.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY LOCATION, DEPTH, SIZE, AND CONDITION OF EXIST. SEWER PRIOR TO ORDERING MATERIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" PVC (SCH 40) STORM DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" PVC (SCH 40) STORM DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.5' (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" WHITE PAINT PAVEMENT  MARKING (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) PROP. BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE DETAIL M-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON SHEET C-502)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. 6" PVC SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER (SCH 40)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5%%% PREFERRED SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%% MIN. SLOPE REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DO %%UNOT%%U DISTURB UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE AND DOWN GUYS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH UTILITY COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO AVOID DISTURBING SERVICE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. 6" PVC SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER (SCH 40)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5%%% PREFERRED SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0%%% MIN. SLOPE REQ'D.



CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT

55 Broad Street

Asheville, NC 28801

828.252.0575

NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com WATAUGA COUNTY,  NORTH CAROLINA

WATAUGA COUNTY

.

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

0080 40 80 160

80

M. CATHEY

M. CATHEY 

M. OETTING

S. BURWELL SEPTEMBER 2020 20.00704 N/A

C-101

F

O

R

R

E

V

I

E

W

O

N

L

Y

R

CA
LL

811 BEFORE YOUD GI

SAFE   DIGGING   PARTNER

P
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
4
-
W

A
T

A
U

G
A

C
O

N
C

-
T

R
A

I
L
E

R
 
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 
A

R
E

A
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
X

-
R

E
F

\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
4
-
T

R
A

I
L
E

R
 
A

R
E

A
 
A

L
T

 
B

A
S

E
3
.
D

W
G

 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
 
9
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
0
 
1
0
:
2
5
 
A

M
 
M

A
T

T
H

E
W

 
O

E
T

T
I
N

G

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

WATAUGA COUNTY LANDFILL 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

107

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4.4%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-8.2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFER STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE AND SCALE HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDFILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3160

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3170

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3199

AutoCAD SHX Text
3201

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3194

AutoCAD SHX Text
3196

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3165

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3285

AutoCAD SHX Text
3285

AutoCAD SHX Text
3285

AutoCAD SHX Text
3285

AutoCAD SHX Text
3285

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3259

AutoCAD SHX Text
3261

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3241

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3241

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3246

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3241

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3239

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3244

AutoCAD SHX Text
3246

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3244

AutoCAD SHX Text
3246

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3204

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3219

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3214

AutoCAD SHX Text
3216

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3226

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3224

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3175

AutoCAD SHX Text
3175

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3160

AutoCAD SHX Text
3170

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3199

AutoCAD SHX Text
3201

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3194

AutoCAD SHX Text
3196

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3165

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3285

AutoCAD SHX Text
3285

AutoCAD SHX Text
3285

AutoCAD SHX Text
3285

AutoCAD SHX Text
3285

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3280

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3275

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3259

AutoCAD SHX Text
3261

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3235

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3241

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3241

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3246

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3260

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3265

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3241

AutoCAD SHX Text
3240

AutoCAD SHX Text
3239

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3244

AutoCAD SHX Text
3246

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3244

AutoCAD SHX Text
3246

AutoCAD SHX Text
3245

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3204

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3219

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3220

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3214

AutoCAD SHX Text
3216

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3226

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3224

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3190

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3180

AutoCAD SHX Text
3175

AutoCAD SHX Text
3175

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3205

AutoCAD SHX Text
3210

AutoCAD SHX Text
3215

AutoCAD SHX Text
3216

AutoCAD SHX Text
3217

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3255

AutoCAD SHX Text
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text
3230

AutoCAD SHX Text
3195

AutoCAD SHX Text
3185

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODY WASTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURING PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRODUCT STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOD WASTE STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASTE RECEIPT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRINDING/MIXING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPOSTING BUNKERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCREENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASTE RECEIPT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOD WASTE STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRINDING/ MIXING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPOSTING BUNKERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODY WASTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURING PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCREENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRODUCT STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAILER PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LCID BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LCID PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LCID PHASE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LCID PHASE 3



3

2

4

7

GRADING AND WALL SITE PLAN

55 Broad Street

Asheville, NC 28801

828.252.0575

NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com WATAUGA COUNTY,  NORTH CAROLINA

WATAUGA COUNTY

TRANSFER STATION IMPROVEMENTS

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

50 0 25 50 100

50

0

M. CATHEY

S. BURWELL

A. WALDROUP

S. BURWELL FEBRUARY, 2021 20.00703 N/A

C-101

P
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
3
-
W

A
T

A
U

G
A

C
O

N
C

-
T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
\
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
S

O
L
I
D

 
W

A
S

T
E

\
2
0
.
0
0
7
0
3
 
-
 
T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

.
D

W
G

 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
 
2
/
2
/
2
0
2
1
 
9
:
1
3
 
A

M
 
A

D
A

M
 
W

A
L
D

R
O

U
P

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

108

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" CPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E.: 3245.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFER STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW : 3248.0 BW : 3248.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3247.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3246.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3247.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3247.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3246.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3246.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3246.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3246.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3246.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3246.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3247.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3247.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW : 3252.00 BW : 3246.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW : 3255.00 BW : 3246.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW : 3257.20 BW : 3247.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW : 3248.00 BW : 3248.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW : 3255.00 BW : 3247.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
039177

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN DIGITALLY SIGNED AND SEALED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARD CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOUND IN NC ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 21-56.1103(E). THIS DIGITAL SIGNATURE HAS BEEN FOUND BY THE NC BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR ENGINEERS AND SURVEYORS TO MEET THESE STANDARDS. PLEASE CONTACT THE SIGNER IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE IN VALIDATING THE SIGNATURE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNED AND DATED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CLASS B RIPRAP 12" THICK WITH FILTER FABRIC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 4' CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED NCDOT GUARDRAIL WITH BUFFERED END SECTION AT EACH END

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETAINING WALL. SEE CATAWBA VALLEY ENGINEERING AND TESTING PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EXISTING ASPHALT ELEVATION



Watauga County Solid Waste
February, 2021

ITEM # DESCRIPTION TOTAL COST

1 Innovation Drive Improvements N/A

2 Inbound Scale & Turning lane $750,000.00
3 Convenience Center $700,000.00
4 Stormwater Pond Repair/Improvements $275,000.00
5 Trailer Storage Area Improvements $100,000.00
6 Transfer Station Improvements $150,000.00
7 Signage and Striping $18,250.00

$1,993,250.00
CONTINGENCY (10%) $199,325.00

$2,192,575.00

NOTES:

2. Engineering & Permit fees are excluded from this estimate.

TOTAL PROJECT COST

4. Easements to perform the repairs are not included in item 4.

Capital Improvement Projects
Updated Cost Estimate

CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL

1. The ENGINEER maintains no control of labor costs, materials, equipment or services furnished by others, the 
Contractor(s)' methods for determining prices, or competitive or market conditions. The estimates herein for project and 
construction costs represent the ENGINEER'S best judgment, and are based on his experience and qualifications as a 
Professional Engineer who possesses familiarity with the construction industry. The ENGINEER does not guarantee the 
accuracy of the cost estimates, which may vary from bids or actual project and construction costs.

 19.00708 PAGE 1 OF 1

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

109



Upcoming Project Schedule 

 

Transfer Station Improvements 

 Advertise for Bids: 2/15/2021 
 Receive Bids: 3/15/2021 

Sediment Basin 

 Advertise for Bids: 3/1/2021 
 Receive Bids: 4/1/2021 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

110



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

111



 

 
 

 
TO:   Watauga County Board of Commissioners  
   Deron Geouque, Watauga County Manager 
    
FROM:   Wright Tilley, Executive Director 
 
RE:   TDA Update for Watauga County Board Retreat 
DATE:    2/2/2021 

 
The Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (TDA) is pleased to provide this update 
for the 2021 Watauga County Commissioners’ Retreat. 
 
Attached to this memo is a copy of the current FY 20/21 Occupancy Tax chart through 
December 2020 comparing current fiscal year to last fiscal year, and a copy of the 2020 
Calendar Year occupancy tax collections compared to calendar year 2019. 
 
When the Covid-19 pandemic hit in March of 2019, we really had no idea what impact that 
would have on travel and tourism in Watauga County.  As we created our FY 20/21 budget, we 
budgeted for a 40% reduction in occupancy tax revenue and reduced our media/advertising 
spend by $175,000.   We were able do this without impacting our operations because we have 
built a very healthy fund balance over the years. 
 
Fortunately, the mountain and coastal regions of North Carolina have done pretty well during 
these unprecedented times.  Cabin and house rentals have been more popular than traditional 
hotel rooms.  Our many outdoor recreation options have been appealing to those wanting to 
get away, but still maintain social distancing.  As a result, our numbers are up while our 
colleagues in other areas of the state are down. 
 
Watauga TDA Highlights: 
 
• Closed the FY 19/20 fiscal year with an increase in occupancy tax revenue of 13.5%, 

which amounted to a $248,321.80 increase in occupancy tax funds over the prior fiscal 
year. 

 
• Current FY 20/21 Fiscal Year occupancy tax collections are up 63.4% over last year for 

July through December.  This amounts to an additional $808,802.90 in occupancy tax 
funds six months into the fiscal year. 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

112



 
 
 
• Calendar year 2020 occupancy tax collections were up 41.3% over the 2019 calendar 

year, which amounts to an $846,587.94 increase in occupancy tax collections for 2020.   
 

In the last (5) years, we have increased occupancy tax revenues in Watauga County by 

52% and from FY 2010/11 through FY 19/20 we have increased occupancy tax 

revenues by 154%. 
 

 
• Watauga County is ranked 18th out of North Carolina’s 10 counties in terms of overall 

 travel impact among North Carolina’s 100 Counties. (NC Commerce/ Visit NC) 
 
• Tourism in Watauga County generated visitor spending of $284.73 million in 2019, a 

7.89% increase over 2018. (NC Commerce) 
 
• Local tax revenues generated by tourism in Watauga County in 2019 amounted to  
 $ 11.12 million.  According to the NC Commerce Department, this represents a $434.76 

tax savings to each county resident. (NC Commerce) 
 
•  2,970 jobs in Watauga County were directly attributable to travel & tourism in 2019. 

 (NC Commerce) 
 
 
• The TDA continued to support the Watauga Choose & Cut program in 2020 with a 

$5,300 marketing grant to the Watauga County Christmas Tree Association. 
 
 
 
• The Watauga County TDA changed ad agencies for FY 20/21.  Our new agency, Miles 

Partnership, only works with travel and tourism clients.  Their knowledge of our industry 
and their investment in industry research will be a tremendous asset to us moving 
forward.   We are developing a new advertising/marketing campaign called “Inspiring 
Awe Since 1849.”   The campaign continues to emphasize outdoor recreation and 
natural beauty, but will also showcase arts & cultural programming, and local food and 
beverage.   Our 2020/21 media plan uses a variety of advertising mediums including, 
digital, paid search, print, television, radio, out-of-home, native and paid social media 
and public relations strategies.   We shifted more heavily into digital and programmatic 
ads which gives us the flexibility to start, stop and change messaging in shorter time 
frames.  
 

 
 
 
 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

113



 
 
 
TDA Infrastructure/Product Development Projects: 
 
• Middle Fork Greenway – The Watauga County TDA continues its commitment to helping 

make the Middle Fork Greenway a reality.  Over the past six years we’ve committed $1 
million to the Middle Fork Greenway Association.   This year we are providing an 
additional $400,000 in funding from our FY 20/21 budget and fund balance.  

 
 County-wide Wayfinding Plan – The TDA bid the wayfinding signs in Feb/March of 2020.  

After receiving (3) bids, the TDA board decided to put the program on hold for a while.  

We are trying to facilitate some legislative changes to allow us to include historic 

attractions by name on the signage.  Currently, the DOT does not allow names.  You can 

only say “theme park” or “attractions” with a directional arrow.   
 

• Rocky Knob Park - With the help of the County, the TDA added new drainage ditches 
around the playground area at Rocky Knob.  The TDA also hired a landscape contractor 
to re-grade the playground pad prior to installation of the new playground equipment.  
Once the playground was installed, the TDA paid for new boarder rails and landscaping 
around the playground and also had a fence installed to keep people off the steep hill 
behind the playground.  Our next maintenance issue at Rocky Knob is to have the 
wooden picnic pavilion and entrance signage sealed and re-stained. 

 

  Guy Ford River Access – The TDA was pleased to be able to contribute funding for the 

new Guy Ford Road parking area and river access.  That facility looks great and is very 

popular in warmer weather. 

 

 Blue Ridge Conservancy Valle Crucis River Access - In 2020, the TDA contributed funds to 

the Blue Ridge Conservancy to help them purchase land along the Watauga River in 

Valle Crucis.  This will lead to future development of that site as a paddle access and 

fishing area.   

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

114



Occupancy Tax Collection Report

July 2020 to Date
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June JULY to Date

BR
155,423.25 141,301.06 118,720.53 155,399.59 87,294.26   658,138.69            
143,282.60 139,341.13 129,201.81 203,780.69 108,116.62 723,722.85            
(12,140.65)  (1,959.93)    10,481.28   48,381.10   20,822.36   65,584.16              

-7.80% -1.40% 8.80% 31.10% 23.85% 9.97%
Boone

194,352.96 186,771.03 154,333.63 198,371.58 135,490.30 869,319.50            
158,116.33 143,603.50 163,988.58 225,467.56 131,486.14 822,662.11            
(36,236.63)  (43,167.53)  9,654.95     27,095.98   (4,004.16)    (46,657.39)             

-18.64% -23.10% 6.30% 13.66% -3.00% -5.37%
Wat 

254,674.60 217,608.87 174,199.64 214,671.17 161,134.03 253,872.96 1,276,161.27         
377,331.40 358,877.47 309,299.99 380,066.83 228,272.21 431,116.27 2,084,964.17         
122,656.80 141,268.60 135,100.31 165,395.66 67,138.18   177,243.31 808,802.90            

48.00% 65.00% 77.55% 77.05% 41.70% 69.82% 63.38%
TTLS
Prior Yr 605,450.81 545,680.96 447,253.80 568,442.34 383,918.59 2,803,619.46         
Cur Yr 678,730.33 641,822.10 602,490.38 809,315.08 467,874.97 3,631,349.13         
$'s +/- 73,279.52   96,141.14   155,236.58 240,872.74 83,956.38   827,729.67            
% +/- 12.10% 17.62% 34.71% 42.40% 21.87% 29.52%

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

115



Occupancy Tax Collection Report

Jan 2020 to Date
Jan Feb March April May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec JAN  to Date

BR
61,449.10 50,076.61   44,578.63   55,684.21      83,738.73      106,423.60 155,423.25 141,301.06 118,720.53 155,399.59 87,294.26 1,060,089.57        
73,168.88 64,985.89   26,661.97   652.85           10,489.38      73,729.28 143,282.60 139,341.13 129,201.81 203,780.69 108,116.62 973,411.10           

11,719.78 14,909.28   (17,916.66)  (55,031.36)    (73,249.35)    (32,694.32) (12,140.65) (1,959.93) 10,481.28 48,381.10 20,822.36 (86,678.47)            
19.10% 29.80% -40.00% -98.83% -87.47% -30.70% -7.80% -1.40% 8.80% 31.10% 23.85% -8.18%

Boone
97,048.98 89,014.92   98,031.27   110,474.04    133,176.33    155,067.97 194,352.96 186,771.03 154,333.63 198,371.58 135,490.30 1,552,133.01        

116,989.08 116,509.44 55,338.64   25,693.35      42,858.99      98,694.77 158,116.33 143,603.50 163,988.58 225,467.56 131,486.14 1,278,746.38        
19,940.10 27,494.52   (42,692.63)  (84,780.69)    (90,317.34)    (56,373.20) (36,236.63) 43,167.53 9,654.95 27,095.98 4,004.16 (273,386.63)          

20.54% 30.90% -43.50% -76.70% -67.80% -36.40% -19.60% -23.10% 6.30% 13.66% -3.00% -17.61%
Wat 

161,705.63 123,551.06 89,010.17   97,106.59      126,043.01    174,510.92 254,674.60 217,608.87 174,199.64 214,671.17 161,134.03 253,872.96 2,048,088.65        
205,827.86 157,431.81 58,521.26   9,495.01        98,510.27      279,926.21 377,331.40 358,877.47 309,299.99 380,066.83 228,272.21 431,116.27 2,894,676.59        
44,122.23 33,880.75   (30,488.91)  (87,611.58)    (27,532.74)    105,415.29 122,656.80 141,268.60 135,100.31 165,395.66 67,138.18 177,243.31 846,587.94           

27.30% 27.42% -34.00% -91.20% -21.80% 60.40% 48.00% 65.00% 77.55% 77.05% 41.70% 69.82% 41.34%
TTLS
Prior Yr 320,203.71 262,642.59 231,620.07 263,264.84    342,958.07    436,002.49 604,450.81 545,680.96 447,253.80 568,442.34 383,918.59 4,660,311.23        
Cur Yr 395,985.82 338,927.14 133,557.91 31,691.67      151,858.64    452,350.26 678,730.33 641,822.10 602,490.38 809,315.08 467,874.97 5,146,834.07        
$'s +/- 75,782.11 76,284.55   (98,062.16)  (231,573.17)  (191,099.43)  16,347.77 73,279.52 96,141.14 155,236.58 240,872.74 83,956.38 486,522.84           
% +/- 23.67% 29.05% -41.30% -88.00% -65.72% 3.75% 12.10% 17.62% 34.71% 42.40% 21.87% 10.44%

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

116



Watauga Medics Inc. 
 

921 W. King St. Boone NC 28607  Ph. 828 264-9486  email:  medics@boone.net 
 

Director Craig Sullivan 
Cell:  828 964-1706 

 
 

To:  Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Craig Sullivan, Watauga Medics Inc. 
 
Date:  Feb. 2, 2021 
 
Re:  Request to increase subsidy to pay for additional crews. 
 
Watauga Medics Inc. would like to increase our staffing to include a 9 hour paramedic crew 7 
days per week.  Some of the cost for this increased staffing can be offset with a increase in our 
rates for services.   The total costs for the crew and the equipment needed are Estimated to be 
$265,000 per year.  A rate increase to the allowable amounts as set by CMS will fund approx.. 
$65,000.00 of this cost leaving approx. $200,000.00.  It is my recommendation to begin with 
this additional crew on Jan. 1, 2022.    
 
This will change will give Watauga County with 4-24 hour paramedic crews, 1-12 hour 
paramedic crew and a 9 hour paramedic crew.  Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
Craig Sullivan 
 
 
 
 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

117

mailto:medics@boone.net


1

5,385

1,624

3,761

0:09:48

633

211

2,428

749

Total Number of Calls in Boone Fire District: 3,298

2,087
Busiest Fire District other than Boone:

14.7

February

Tuesday

Busiest time of the day: Between 1300 and 1400

Yearly average percent increase in calls over last 29 years: 3.60%

Increase percentage in calls from previous year -14.06%

Percentage of Calls that resulted in No Transports (NTP's): 30.2%

Total Number of DOA's for Year: 63

Total Number of Patients flown from the scene: 18

Watauga Medics Inc.
921 W. King St.  Boone NC  28607  Ph: 828 264 9486  Fax: 828 264 9482  email: medics@boone.net

Year 2020 at a Glance

Total Out of County Transports:

Total Number of Calls:

Number of No Transports:

Total Patients Transported:

Yearly Average Response Time:

Average Number of Calls per Day:

Busiest month:

Busiest day of the week

Total Out Of County Emergency Tranports:

Total Number of Emergency Calls:

Total Number of Patients Transported Emergency:

Total Calls other than Boone:

Blowing Rock

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

118



Base 1: 2,532
Base 2: 2,141
Base 3: 712
Total Number of Calls 5,385

No Transports compared to Total Calls
Total Transports 3,761
No Transports 1,624
Total Calls 5,385

For year ending 2020

Watauga Medics Inc. Year 2020 Annual Report
Calls Run From Each Base

Base 1:
47%

Base 2:
40%

Base 3:
13%

Total 
Transports

70%

No 
Transports

30%

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

119



Month Calls
January 469
February 511
March 397
April 304
May 427
June 452
July 453
August 497
September 481
October 501
November 461
December 432

Total Calls 5,385

Month NTP's
January 127
February 144
March 115
April 89
May 127
June 136
July 149
August 153
September 124
October 158
November 164
December 138

Total 1,624

For Year ending 2020
Calls by the Month

No-Transports by Month

Watauga Medics Inc. Year 2020 Annual Report

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

469

511

397

304

427
452 453

497
481

501

461
432

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

120



Calls by Fire District Number
Beaver Dam 140
Blowing Rock 657
Cove Creek 308
Deep Gap 187
Foscoe 237
Meat Camp 232
Seven Devils 19
Shawneehaw 33
Stewart Simmons 38
Todd 23
Zionville 141
Fall Creek 25
Other 47

Calls by Fire 
District Other 
Than Boone: 2,087

Calls other than Boone 2,087
Calls in Boone Fire Dist. 3,298

5,385

Calls by type of response used:
Type of Response Number

Emergency 2,428
Routine 2,957

Total 5,385

Watauga Medics Inc. Year 2020 Annual Report
For Year Ending 2020

Calls in Boone vs other districts

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

1

Beaver Dam

Blowing Rock

Cove Creek

Deep Gap

Foscoe

Meat Camp

Seven Devils

Shawneehaw

Stewart Simmons

Zionville

Fall Creek

Other

Emergency
45%

Routine
55%

Emergency

Routine

39%

61%

Calls in Boone vs all other fire districts

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

121



Type of response used while transporting patients 

Transport Type Number

Emergency 766
Routine 2,995

Total Transports 3,761

Type of Traffic for Out-Of-County Trips

Traffic Number
Emergency 197
Routine 436

633

Destination of Calls

Destination Number
WMC 2,762
NTP's 1,624
out of county hospital 529
Residence 99
nursng/hospice/other 353
Scene Flights 18
Total 5,385

* WMC: Watauga Medical Center
* NTP: No Transports

Watauga Medics Inc. Year 2020 Annual Report

For Year Ending 2020

Total Out of County

51.29%

30.16%

9.82%

1.84%
6.56%

0.33%

WMC

NTP's

out of county
hospital

Residence

nursng/hospic
e/other

Scene Flights

20%

80% Emergency

Routine

20%

80%

Emergency

Routine

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

122



Time of Day Number of Calls
00:00 - 01:00 143
01:00 - 02:00 140
02:00 - 03:00 111
03:00 - 04:00 88
04:00 - 05:00 74
05:00 - 06:00 94
06:00 - 07:00 98
07:00 - 08:00 170
08:00 - 09:00 215
09:00 - 10:00 256
10:00 - 11:00 296
11:00 - 12:00 343
12:00 - 13:00 336
13:00 - 14:00 363
14:00 - 15:00 348
15:00 - 16:00 345
16:00 - 17:00 299
17:00 - 18:00 325
18:00 - 19:00 258
19:00 - 20:00 265
20:00 - 21:00 270
21:00 - 22:00 185
22:00 - 23:00 177
23:00 - 24:00 186

5,385

Watauga Medics Inc. Year 2020 Annual Report

0
50

100
150

200
250

300
350

400

0
0
:0
0
 ‐
 0
1
:0
0

0
1
:0
0
 ‐
 0
2
:0
0

0
2
:0
0
 ‐
 0
3
:0
0

0
3
:0
0
 ‐
 0
4
:0
0

0
4
:0
0
 ‐
 0
5
:0
0

0
5
:0
0
 ‐
 0
6
:0
0

0
6
:0
0
 ‐
 0
7
:0
0

0
7
:0
0
 ‐
 0
8
:0
0

0
8
:0
0
 ‐
 0
9
:0
0

0
9
:0
0
 ‐
 1
0
:0
0

1
0
:0
0
 ‐
 1
1
:0
0

1
1
:0
0
 ‐
 1
2
:0
0

1
2
:0
0
 ‐
 1
3
:0
0

1
3
:0
0
 ‐
 1
4
:0
0

1
4
:0
0
 ‐
 1
5
:0
0

1
5
:0
0
 ‐
 1
6
:0
0

1
6
:0
0
 ‐
 1
7
:0
0

1
7
:0
0
 ‐
 1
8
:0
0

1
8
:0
0
 ‐
 1
9
:0
0

1
9
:0
0
 ‐
 2
0
:0
0

2
0
:0
0
 ‐
 2
1
:0
0

2
1
:0
0
 ‐
 2
2
:0
0

2
2
:0
0
 ‐
 2
3
:0
0

2
3
:0
0
 ‐
 2
4
:0
0

Number of Calls

Number of Calls

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

123



Response Times Number

00:00 - 04:59 455
05:00 - 07:59 510
08:00 - 08:59 149
09:00 - 09:59 98
10:00 - 11:59 215
12:00 - 14:59 277
15:00 - 16:59 141
17:00 - 17:59 62
18:00 - 19:59 85
20:00 - 29:59 162
30:00 - 1:29:59 30

Total Emergency Responses 2,184

Yearly Average Response Time: 0:09:48

Watauga Medics Inc. Year 2020 Annual Report
Response Times For Year Ending 2020

0

100

200

300

400

500

600
455

510

149
98

215
277

141

62 85
162

30

Number

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

124



Year Year
1991 1,782 1991
1992 1,921 1992 139 7.24%
1993 2,017 1993 96 4.76%
1994 2,198 1994 181 8.23%
1995 2,527 1995 329 13.02%
1996 2,571 1996 44 1.71%
1997 2,784 1997 213 7.65%
1998 2,755 1998 -29 -1.05%
1999 3,139 1999 384 12.23%
2000 3,487 2000 348 9.98%
2001 3,688 2001 201 5.45%
2002 3,775 2002 87 2.30%
2003 3,866 2003 91 2.35%
2004 3,752 2004 -114 -3.04%
2005 3,922 2005 170 4.33%
2006 4,053 2006 131 3.23%
2007 4,048 2007 -5 -0.12%
2008 4,460 2008 412 9.24%
2009 4,461 2009 1 0.02%
2010 4,473 2010 12 0.27%
2011 4,783 2011 310 6.48%
2012 4,714 2012 -69 -1.46%
2013 4,705 2013 -9 -0.19%

2014 5,191 2014 486 9.36%
2015 5,435 2015 244 4.49%
2016 5,912 2016 477 8.07%
2017 5,990 2017 78 1.30%
2018 5,952 2018 -38 -0.64%
2019 6,142 2019 190 3.09%
2020 5,385 2020 -757 -14.06%

3.60%

Total Calls

Watauga Medics Inc. Year 2020 Annual Report

            Total Number of Calls by Year Number Increase/Decrease
Change

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

125



2020 Calls by the day of the week

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Sunday 691 721 733 840 822 682
Monday 767 957 855 790 843 811
Tuesday 815 874 824 852 822 756
Wednesday 784 896 865 879 818 793
Thursday 766 908 871 863 844 742
Friday 805 966 918 873 915 819
Saturday 757 820 886 893 848 832

5,385 6,142 5,952 5,990 5,912 5,435

Total Calls by Day of The Week

12%

15%

14%

15%

15%

16% 13%

2019

Sunday 691

Monday 767

Tuesday 815

Wednesday 784

Thursday 766

Friday 805

Saturday 757

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

126



2020 Number of Emergency calls by district

2020 2016 Data:

BDFD 80 BDFD 41

BFD 1184 BFD 1271

BRFD 308 BRFD 282

CCFD 183 CCFD 195

DGFD 107 DGFD 119

FFD 136 FFD 154

MCFD 125 MCFD 109

SSFD 25 SSFD 20

SHFD 21 SHFD 35

ZFD 79 ZFD 55

2,248 2,281

              Avg. emergency response time by district

2020 data 2016 data: Diff of:

BDFD 00:19:46 BDFD 00:25:32 improve 0:05:46

BFD 00:06:35 BFD 00:06:12 dec 0:00:23

BRFD 00:11:45 BRFD 00:12:35 improve 00:00:50

CCFD 00:11:37 CCFD 00:12:33 improve 00:00:56

DGFD 00:15:42 DGFD 00:14:28 dec 00:01:14

FFD 00:14:25 FFD 00:13:07 dec 00:01:18

MCFD 00:15:18 MCFD 00:14:02 dec 00:00:44

SSFD 00:24:18 SSFD 00:25:37 improve 00:01:19

SHFD 00:24:01 SHFD 00:21:46 dec 00:02:15

ZFD 00:11:25 ZFD 00:15:04 improve 00:03:39

BDFD

BFD
BRFD

CCFD

DGFD

FFD

MCFDSSFD
SHFDZFD

BDFD

BFD

BRFD

CCFD

DGFD

FFD

MCFD

SSFD

SHFD

ZFD

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

127



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

128



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

129



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

130



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

131



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

132



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

133



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

134



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

135



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

136



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

137



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

138



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

139



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

140



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

141



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

142



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

143



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

144



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

145



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

146



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

147



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

148



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

149



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

150



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

151



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

152



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

153



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

154



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

155



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

156



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

157



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

158



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

159



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

160



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

161



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

162



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

163



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

164



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

165



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

166



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

167



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

168



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

169



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

170



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

171



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

172



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

173



 Independent Written Report 

 

Funded by: Blowing Rock Civic Association 

 

Submitted: December 20th, 2020, Revised January 4, 2021 

 

Prepared by: Lords Consulting, LLP 

 

The Blowing Rock Civic Association requested an investigation into the response times 

of the Emergency Medical Services (EMS) and recommendations for change or improvement.  I 

have been working in the EMS Field since 1976 and have a strong background in pre-hospital 

medical care and EMS Systems.  My experiences range from medical first responder through 

critical care paramedic and include administrative tenures as Crew Chief, Operations Director, 

Department Manager and County EMS Director. 

This report includes information collected from in person interviews and telephone 

conversations as well as statistical data collected directly from Amy Snider, 911 Services 

Coordinator, Watauga County Communications.  A concerted effort was made to separate data 

by individual agency.  

Watauga County provides EMS services throughout the County by contracting with 

Watauga Medics to provide emergency and transport services.  Blowing Rock Fire & Rescue 

provides paramedic 1st Responder services to the Town of Blowing Rock and the entire Blowing 

Rock Fire District from 3 stations. The primary funders of Blowing Rock Fire & Rescue are the 

taxpayers in Blowing Rock and the taxpayers located in the fire district.  

 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

174



General concepts related to EMS analysis and evaluation 

Response Times   

To get a better understanding of response times we will use medically based science.  

Many of these standards were put in place in the early 70’s.  “The “standard” was derived while 

cardiac arrest survival was being studied in the early 1970s by Alvarez and Cobb in Seattle.  

They noted dramatic increases in survival, which they attributed to at least three factors: reduced 

response times, of less than eight minutes, first responders performing CPR (Cardiopulmonary 

Resuscitation) and citizen CPR training. Later, Mickey Eisenberg, MD, et al catapulted Seattle’s 

results to national attention by publishing several landmark studies” (Fitch, 2005).  The 

American Heart Association states, “for each minute that passes without CPR and defibrillation, 

the chances of survival decreased by 7-10%” (2013). Even applying the nation’s best response 

times, the rate of recovery in the United States from cardiac arrest is less than 10% with only 7% 

achieving full pre-arrest function. Presently there is not a universally accepted response-time 

requirement. However, in urban areas the most widely used standard is eight minutes and 59 

seconds (8:59). The goal is 90% compliance based on a fractal measure, not an average. (fractal 

response time measurement includes all time intervals between the time the service received 

enough information to initiate a response and the time a properly equipped and staffed 

ambulance arrives on scene.) The 8:59 target is also consistent with the response time 

recommended by the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA 1710, _5.3.3.4.2). The NFPA 

requires communities to “provide for the arrival of an ALS (Advance Life Support) company 

within an eight-minute response time to 90% of incidents. The NFPA standard excludes call-

processing time intervals (Fitch, 2005). 

Research outline in the article Emergency Medical Services Response Time and Mortality 

in an Urban Setting published in the journal of Prehospital Care 2012 states, “A common tenet 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

175



in emergency medical services (EMS) is that faster response equates to better patient outcome, 

translated by some EMS operations into a goal of a response time of 8 minutes or less for 

advanced life support (ALS) units responding to life-threatening events” (Blanchard et al, 2012).  

An analysis of this data suggested there may be a small beneficial for those that receive 

care in ≤7 minutes 59 seconds as it relates to inpatient admission but not on survival.  The 

results of this study call into question the clinical effectiveness of the 8-minute response time on 

decreasing mortality for adult patients identified as having a life-threatening event at the time of 

the 9-1-1 call (Blanchard et al, 2012). 

 In a study cited by JAMA 2019, Association Between Emergency Medical Service 

Response Time and Motor Vehicle Crash Mortality Found in the United States, they found “that 

during the study period, 2,214,480 ambulance responses to Motor Vehicle Crashes (MVC) were 

identified (median, 229 responses per county with a range of 73-697) in 2268 US counties.  The 

median county response time was 9 minutes (range 7-11 minutes). Longer response times were 

significantly associated with a higher rate of MVC mortality (≥12 vs <7 minutes; mortality rate 

ratio, 1.46” (Byrne et al., 2019).  This means that patients with response times greater than 12 

minutes have a 1.46 times great chance of mortality than those with response times of less than 7 

minutes.  “After adjusting for measures of rurality, on-scene and transport times, access to 

trauma resources, and traffic safety laws.  This finding was consistent in both rural/wilderness 

and urban/suburban settings, where a significant proportion of MVC fatalities (rural/wilderness, 

9.9%; urban/suburban, 14.1%) were associated with prolonged response times (defined by the 

median value, ≥10 minutes for rural and ≥7 minutes for urban). “These findings suggest that 

trauma system-level efforts to address regional disparities in MVC mortality should evaluate 

EMS response times as a potential contributor” (Byrne et al., 2019). 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

176



Local Response 

In Watauga County, Medical Helicopter service is utilized to transport trauma patients 

from the scene to Level 1 Trauma Centers. Research has shown that air transport to a Trauma 

Center decreases mortality rate from trauma by 57% (Michaels, 2014).  Watauga Medics state 

that in 2019 that they had an average response time of 9.01 minutes.  The fractal response time 

for Watauga Medics is 17 minutes at 90% compliance. 

 

Key Points 

Faster Response Times equates to Better Patient Outcomes 

Common Goal is 90% Coverage within < 9 Minutes  

Fractal Measurement of Both Coverage and Response Time is the Best Practice 

Watauga Medics Fractal Response Time is 17 Minutes at 90% 

Coverage is divided between Emergency 1st Responders and Transport Services  

 

   Local EMS Analysis and Evaluation 

Franchise Agreement (Watauga County and Watauga Medics) 

The current franchise agreement between Watauga County and Watauga Medics has been 

in place since 2018.  In review of this agreement, I have identified a few concerns. Included are 

my recommendations to assist Watauga County moving forward by improving services and 

response times.   

1. Watauga Medics billing fees are not in line with the Medicare allowable rates.  

• Federal Medicare guidelines identify Watauga County as rural.  Medicare sets forth 

allowable rates for service to the EMS providers. Presently some of the Watauga 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

177



Medics fees fall below the Medicare allowable rates and are restricted by the 

franchise agreement. It is recommended that Watauga Medics be allowed to adjust 

their fee structure to reflect at least 125% of the allowable rate outline by Medicare. 

Medicare pays 80% of billed charges so billing 125% of the allowable rate would 

assure maximum federal support of the local EMS system. In all these examples the 

Medicare patient would be responsible for the 20% of the billed services as required 

by the government.  

1. Basic Life Support (BLS) fee allowed by the franchise agreement is $300 

(23a). Medicare allowable rate is $227.68. To receive this amount Watauga 

Medics should bill $284.60. 

2. ALC non-emergency fee allowed by the franchise agreement is $325.00 (23b). 

Medicare allowable rate is $272.68. To receive this amount Watauga Medics 

should bill $340.85. 

3. ALS emergency fee allowed by the franchise agreement is $415.00 (23b). 

Medicare allowable rate is $431.74 To receive this amount Watauga Medics 

should bill $539.65. 

4. ALS II fee allowed by the franchise agreement is $550.00 (23b) Medicare 

allowable rate is $624.89. To receive this amount Watauga Medics should bill 

$781.11. 

5. Mileage fee allowed by the franchise agreement is $9.50 (23c). Medicare 

allowable rate is $11.54 for the first 17 miles and $7.69 for each mile 

thereafter. To receive this amount Watauga Medics should bill $14.42 and 

$9.61 per mile. 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

178



2. Watauga Medics billing fees are not being adjusted timely in response to changes in the 

Medicare allowable rate.  

• The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) evaluates the ambulance fee 

structure every year. Adjustments are made as needed.  Most of the Watauga Medics 

service fees are below the allowable rates as outlined above. It is my recommendation 

that the franchise agreement be updated to allow an automatic increase/decrease of 

fees in response to any Medicare approves rate change. 

3. Watauga Medics is reported a 9:01 minute average emergency response time for 2019. 

The franchise agreement currently requires an average emergency response time “not to 

exceed 10 minutes” (17a).  

• Watauga Medics are being allotted additional coverage hours beginning January 

2021. Their emergency call volume has remained consistent over the past ten (10) 

year meaning that emergency calls are less than 45% of total call volume and have 

been no more that than 2,500 annually.  With the addition of a fourth 24-hour 

ambulance it should be expected that their response times improve proportionally.  I 

recommend the franchise requirement be amended to an 8:06 minute average 

emergency response time. 

4. The franchise currently states that “not less than 2 ambulances will be kept within the 

County at all times” (7).  

• Beginning January 2021 Watauga Medics will have 6 ambulance during peak hours 

and 4 during non-peak hours. It is my recommendation that this number be increased 

to not less than 3 ambulances within the County. Increased availability and proximity 

will improve response times.  

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

179



Key Points  

Billing Rates should be increased to Federal Medicare Allowable Rates 

Use Fractal Response Times (National Benchmark) to measure Success 

   County provides an EMS team at BRFD on Monday to Friday for 9 hours 

County continues to provide transport services and rely on high quality    

paramedic 1st Responder coverage provided by BRF&R until the 

transport ambulance arrives 

 

 

Overview of Watauga Medics 

A non-exclusive franchise agreement is in place between Watauga County and Watauga 

Medics.  This agreement outlines the provision of Emergency Medical Services throughout 

Watauga County as provided by Watauga Medics, Inc. Current operations from that agreement 

includes: 

A. Annual subsidy payable to Watauga Medics by Watauga County of  $1,577,000 

(2020/2021) 

B. Billing for all calls in Watauga County generated $1.71 million in revenue (2018). 

C. Watauga Medics has three stations. Each station has a 24/7 unit (24-hour                                  

ambulance seven days a week with two qualified crew members).  They have an additional 

       ambulance that works a 12-hour day shift and a 5th ambulance that is stationed at the 

      Blowing Rock Fire Department (BRFD) Station 1 for 9 hours a day Monday through 

 Friday. This 9-hour truck will be converted to a 24/7 unit beginning January 2021. This 

 unit will continue to be stationed at the Blowing Rock Fire Department (Station 1) for 9 

 hours a day Monday through Friday.  After that time, the unit will then move to Watauga 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

180



 Medics station #2 in Boone for the remainder of their shift.  All the ambulances provided 

 by Watauga Medics are ALS (Advanced Life Support/Paramedic) which is the highest 

 certification level of care for a North Carolina County 911 system.  

D. Watauga Medics’ stations are located at 921 W. King Street in Boone, 133 Longvue 

Street in Boone, and the Villas near the intersection of US321 and US421. They also 

have a unit stationed at the Blowing Rock Fire Department M-F for 9 hours each day. 

E. In 2019 Watauga Medics had reduced their average emergency response time to 9:01 

minutes as shown here (Table 1). An average response time reflects 50% of the response 

times to be less than 9:01 minutes and the other 50% are greater.  The data is further 

broken down by fire district to show which areas have realized the greatest improvement 

in response times (Table 2). 

F. Watauga Medics received 6,142 call in 2019.  Approximately 28% (1,742) of those 

patients were not transported leaving 4,400 transports.  Those transport included 

interfacility transfers which resulted in 666 patients being taken out of the county. Out of 

county transports can take up to 6 hours, placing units out of service for extended periods 

of time.  

Table 1 

For Year Ending 2019  

Response Time Number of call 

00:00 – 04:49 632 

05:00 – 07:59 577 

08:00 – 08:59 189 

09:00 – 09:59 147 

10:00 – 11:59 233 

12:00 – 14:59 287 

15:00 – 16:59 121 

17:00 – 17:59 44 

18:00 – 19:59 67 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

181



20:00 – 29:59 154 

   30:00 – 1:29:59 20 

 

Total Emergency Responses          2471 

 

Average Response Time           9:01 Minutes 

Table 2  

Average Emergency Response Time by District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Craig Sullivan, owner-operator of Watauga Medics, was asked to provide an 

estimated cost of adding an additional ALS transport unit beginning 2021. His projections are 

shown here. 

Personnel Expenditures 

$ 577,920 Paramedic salaries and benefits (see appendix A for additional details)  

Initial Capital Expenditures 

$200,000 Vehicle and equipment  

Maintenance and Repairs 

$20,000 Annually based on 5-year life expectancy  

_________________________ 

Average Cost is approximately $650,000 by amortizing Capital Expenditures over 5 years. 

 

 

 2019 Data 2016 Data Change  

BDFD 18:52 25:32 - 6:39 Improved 

BFD 06:10 06:12 -   :02 Improved 

BRFD 12:01 12:35 -   :34 Improved 

CCFD 10:24 12:33 - 2:09 Improved 

DGFD 13:39 14:28 -   :49 Improved 

FFD 14:19 13:07             1:12 Declined 

MCFD 14:46 14:02               :44 Declined 

SSFD 24:51 25:37 -   :46 Improved 

SHFD 21:32 21:46 -   :14 Improved 

ZFD 11:47 15:04 - 3:16 Improved 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

182



 

Key Points 

County chooses to contract with a private EMS provider 

Watauga Medics has a Non-Exclusive Franchise contract with the County  

No control by Blowing Rock Township or Blowing Rock Fire District 

The Blowing Rock area only produces 10% of the county’s emergent calls 

Average Response Time in Boone is 6 Minutes 

Average Response Time outside of Boone is 10 to 24 Minutes 

Average Response to for Blowing Rock Fire District is 12 Minutes 

    

 

Overview of Blowing Rock Fire and Rescue (BRF&R) 

Blowing Rock Fire and Rescue serve 36.6 square miles of Watauga County.   

A. In 2019 they equipped all three stations as Medical First Responders.  They are not only 

first responders but were providing care at the paramedic level with Advanced Life 

Support equipment.  The highest level of pre-hospital care available. 

B. Blowing Rock Fire and Rescue has 3 stations staff 24/7. Station 1 is located at 8001 

Valley Boulevard in Blowing Rock and is staffed with 2 paid firefighter/paramedics.  

Station 2 is located at 6165 US 221 and is staffed with 1 paid firefighter/paramedic.  

Station 3 is located at 2409 Aho Road and is also staffed with 1 paid 

firefighter/paramedic.  The district also has volunteers that will respond if needed. 

C. Their average response time in 2019 was 6 minutes and 51 seconds.  This time exceeds 

national standards for urban and rural areas. NFPA 1710 states, “On all EMS calls, the 

standard establishes a turnout time of one minute, and four minutes or less for the arrival 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

183



of a unit with first responder or higher-level capability at an emergency medical incident. 

This objective should be met 90% of the time” (NFPA 2020). Fire department response 

time measurements are an integral part of managing and understanding emergency 

response. However, fire departments often define response time using different measures 

and report response time to the public in different ways (Yeomans, 2011). 

D. In 2019 the fire department responded to 577 medical calls from the Blowing Rock Fire 

and Rescue stations (including some medical calls in other fire districts within Watauga 

County).  These calls are simultaneous dispatch with Watauga Medics. 

For clarification I would like to review the format used the Watauga Communications when 

taking 911 medical calls. Carefully following a scripted call intake, they divide calls into the 

following Response Determinants (Figure 1.) 

Figure 1. 

Response Determinant 

 

Type Capability Response Time 

Alpha Basic Life Support Cold (single unit) 

Bravo Basic Life Support Hot (multiple units) 

Charlie Advanced Life Support Cold (single unit) 

Delta Advanced Life Support Hot (multiple units) 

Echo 
Advanced Life Support and special 

units 

Hot (Multiple units) plus other first responders, 

e.g. Fire 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

184



         (Clawson,2011) 

E. Prior to the pandemic all fire districts were dispatched as First Responders to all EMS 

calls with the exception of the Boone Fire District. EMS services were dispatched to all 

calls. The only exception to this process is a citizen assist call which is considered non-

medical. The fire department alone would response.  An example of this would be 

someone who needs assistance getting up but does not requires any medical intervention. 

Once COVID became active the Blowing Rock Fire Department altered their responses 

to include only Delta and Echo calls leaving EMS to respond alone to all other call types.  

F. The 2020 census for Blowing Rock Fire District numbered 4,664.  Blowing Rock Fire 

District is the second largest district in Watauga County by area. Boone is slightly larger 

at 40.74 square miles. Boone’s 2010 census numbered 27,80.  

G. Blowing Rock Fire Department receive funding from several sources including Watauga 

Fire District Tax, Blowing Rock Township Tax and Caldwell County Tax. Blowing Rock 

Fire District includes areas outside of Blowing Rock township and has a tax valuation of 

$1.0B with a fire tax rate of .05 which bring in $494,989 (Table 3). The residents of 

Blowing Rock township do not pay this .05 fire tax. It is included in their township tax.   

 

Table 3. 

For the Year Ending June 30, 2019 

Fire Protection District Tax Rate per 

$100 

Net Levy 

Beech Mountain Rural 0.05 $                   1,588 

Blowing Rock 0.05 494,989 

Boone Rural 0.06 947,176 

Cove Creek 0.05 253,675 

Cove Creek Rural 0.05        324 

Deep Gap 0.05 201,961 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

185



Foscoe 0.05 479,151 

Foscoe Rural 0.05  74,574 

Meat Camp 0.05 227,353 

Northwest Watauga 0.05 118,372 

Shawneehaw 0.05 101,296 

Shawneesha Rural 0.05    6,334 

Stewart Simmons 0.085 232,844 

Todd 0.07   64,821 

Zionville 0.05 123,391 

Total Net Fire Protection District Levies    $3,327,391 

 

Brake out of 2019 Emergency Medical Services calls in BRFD District 

  Area  ESN  Call Volume   

  BRFD Township 310  11    

  BRFD Township 302  325    

      336  58%  

          

  BRFD  301  165    

  BRFD  370  18    

  BRFD  401  57    

      240  42%  

 

Chief Kent Graham, Chief of Blowing Rock Fire and Rescue, was asked to provide an 

estimated cost of adding an additional ALS transport unit beginning 2021. His projections are 

shown here. 

Initial Personnel Expenditures 

 $     44,000.00 Paramedic Annual Salary Avg  

 $     17,600.00 Annual Benefits Cost 

 $     61,600.00 Total Per Medic 

 $   431,200.00 Additional Medic Staffing (7 FTE) 

 $     30,000.00 Clerical / Billing Admin Salary 

 $     12,000.00 40% Benefit Cost 

 $     42,000.00 Additional Admin. / Billing Staff (1 FTE) 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

186



 $      473,200.00 Total Annual Personnel Cost 

Initial Incidental & Recurring Expenditures 

 $     12,000.00 Equipment & Vehicle Maintenance & Repair 

$     61,516.00              FT Transport Agency Worker's Comp Insurance (13%)  

$     42,000.00                                    Additional portable radios, pagers, uniforms, PPE 

$      115,516.00 

Initial Capital Expenditures 

$     78,000.00              Medical, Radios, Cardiac Monitor, Equipment & Supplies 

 $     44,000.00 Stretcher Lift Mechanism 

 $     17,000.00 Powered Stretcher Assembly 

 $   145,000.00  Additional Type I 4WD Ambulance 

$      284,000.00 

Initial Year Total Cost Estimate 

 

_________________________ 

Average Cost is approximately $700,000 by amortizing Capital Expenditures over 5 years. 

 

 

Key Points 

Blowing Rock and BRDF fund Paramedic 1st Responders to reduce Risk 

Average response time in 2019 was 6 minutes and 51 seconds 

58% of Emergency Calls in BRFD are for Town of Blowing Rock 

BRFD Footprint is large 

BRFD is 36 Square Miles 

Town of Blowing is 3 Square Miles 

BRF&R already provides responses to all call levels, prior to COVID 

BRF&R already responds to Caldwell County with an ALS Ambulance. 

Cost per Team is $50K higher compared to Watauga Medic 

$      872,716.00 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

187



 

 

Overview of Blowing Rock Township 

 Blowing Rock Township North Carolina has a population 1,367 according to the 2020 

census and a seasonal effective population of approximately 5,000 without including tourists 

based on approximately 1,800 homes. Blowing Rock encompasses just 3.1 square miles. The tax 

valuation of Blowing Rock Township is $1.2B, with a $0.39 tax rate generating $4,680,000 in 

property taxes. The median age of the citizens based on census data is 60.3 years, 57.1 years for 

males, and 62.1 years for females (World Population, 2020). Anecdotally, we know that the 

median age for seasonal residents is older but declining as homeowners from surrounding 

regions are increasing.  

 

Potential Solutions 

These proposals are listed in no specific order of priority. They are presented from the 

viewpoint of decreasing the response times of EMS to Blowing Rock Township. Each proposal 

cost approximately $650,000 annually and will provide 24/7 ambulance service to Blowing 

Rock. To ascertain the actual cost a Request for Proposal (RFP) will need to be solicited from the 

providers for the exact type of service to be provided.  

 

1. County continues to provide transport services, rely on high quality paramedic 1st 

Responder coverage provided by BRF&R until the transport ambulance arrives and 

challenge County to provide the same level of service throughout the County using a 

Fractal Goal to measure success.  

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

188



Key Points 

BRF&R 1st Responder Emergency Response Times are below 9 Minute Standard 

Must accept Transport Response Times by County 

Accept that the County is not providing consistent service throughout the County 

No Local Control 

No Additional Cost 

 

 

  

2. County provides an ALS Watauga Medics unit in Blowing Rock 24 hours a day, 

seven days a week funded by County. 

 

Watauga Medics are already stationed at the Blowing Rock Fire and Rescue station 9 

hours a day Monday - Friday. This proposal would increase that time to 24/7. 

• The unit would be housed in an existing facility at no additional cost. 

• The approximate cost of $650,000 annually  

• Reduced response times for an ambulance in the Blowing Rock Fire District.  

• An increased presence of an ambulance in the Blowing Rock Fire District.  

This unit would still be utilized as needed for calls, standbys, and backup 

throughout Watauga county. The Blowing Rock Fire District generated 

less than 10% of the Watauga county call volume while the Boone Fire 

District creates over 65% of that annual call volume. It is my estimate that 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

189



during peak hours this unit will be out of the Blowing Rock Fire District 

approximately 40% of the time.  

Key Points 

Provides 24/7 coverage  

Crew pulled away as needed coverage elsewhere 

Takes advantage of BRF&D main facility 

Annual incremental cost is $580,000  

No additional funding has been offered by County 

No Local Control  

 

 

 

   

3.  BRF&R provides an ALS unit at BRF&R main station 24 hours a day, seven days a 

week funded by BRFD and Town of Blowing Rock taxes. 

• The unit would be housed in an existing facility at no additional cost. 

• The approximate cost would be $650K. 

• Significantly reduced response times for an ambulance in the Blowing Rock Fire 

District as the unit would not leave the district unless it is on a call.  This unit 

would also be utilized as needed for standbys and backup on emergent calls 

throughout Watauga county.   

• A franchise agreement would need to be established with Blowing Rock Fire and 

Rescue for ambulance transport services. 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

190



• The unit cost will be averaging over $1,000 per transport. 

• Funding of $600,000 net cost could come from different sources to cover capital 

cost and ongoing expenses.  As an example: 

 Increase in Taxes        $6000,000 

 

 Each $0.01 Fire Tax increase        $100,000  

 

 Each $0 .01 Blowing Rock Township Tax      $120,000 

 

Revenue from call volume, 400 calls billed at $500  

(allowable rate) x 50% collection      $100,000 

 

 

Key Points 

 

Allows for Control of Personnel 

Need to outsource billing 

Net Cost is approximately $600,000 

Increase in BRFD tax rate 

Increase in Town of Blowing Rock tax rate 

Need to determine fair allocation to BRFD and Town of Blowing Rock  

 

 

 

4. Town of Blowing Rock provides EMS that would provide an ALS ambulance 24 

hour a day, seven days a week funded by the Town of Blowing Rock  

• This system would run independently of Watauga County and Blowing Rock Fire 

and Rescue.  

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

191



• This service could be a private service or a township service, depending on how 

much control and responsibility the township wants to maintain.   

• A franchise agreement with Watauga County would be needed. This agreement 

would include any supplements from tax dollars and billing restrictions.   

• To assure that best pricing is achieved this service should be put out for RFPs. 

• The ownership of vehicles, staff and administrative responsibilities would be 

determined based on the RFP (Request for Proposal). 

• Blowing Rock Township is a small area with a small population for an 

independent EMS to operate. This service could be provided by 1 ambulance, 

with the other county services continuing to provide routine transports and 

emergency backup. The unit cost will be significant averaging approximately 

$2,000 per transport.  (336 transports per year) 

Key Points 

Most Expensive Alternative  

Town would be in control of the additional ALS Ambulance 

No commitment to County, except Mutual Aid 

Funding would come from BRFD fire taxes and Town property taxes 

Need to outsource Billing 

Need Franchise Agreement with County 

Need Agreement with BRF&R to house ALS Ambulance  

Need Agreement on use of ALS Ambulance in County System 

Obtain agreements with Watauga Medics for all non-emergent transports. 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

192



 

 

 

Other Considerations  

1. Seasonal coverage with County 

After a careful analysis of the monthly statistics, it seems reasonable to flex coverage 

with seasonal demands. The yearly cost could possibly be lowered. The highest demand 

months are May through November. The greatest difficulty with this scenario is the 

ability to find the necessary resources to flex up during the summer months. This mainly 

applies to qualified staff as summer months add increase call volume for most of the 

counties in North Carolina.   

2. Peak Time coverage  

Breaking down call volume into actual calls per hour and by day of the week helps 

determine appropriate staffing.  Increased staffing during peak hours can improve 

response times and help controlling overall cost. Watauga Medics is currently staffing a 

12-hour day truck in Boone and a 9-hour day truck Monday – Friday in Blowing Rock. 

This concept can be further applied to keep the Blowing Rock unit in their district as 

much as possible.  

3. Quick Response Vehicles (QRV’s) 

A QRV is a fully equipped ALS non transport unit that is manned by a single Paramedic 

who is strategically located and can respond to emergency medical situations quickly. 

This concept is currently in place at BRF&R. Paramedics were responding to 100% of 

911 calls through 2019.  Once the pandemic began to take hold the Fire Chief changed 

the response to include only Delta and Echo calls.  The QRVs are no longer responding 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

193



to Alpha, Bravo, Charlie response determinants due to COVID 19. Historically a QRV 

with a paramedic arrived at the scene of an emergency in an average 6.5 minutes. This 

time meets or exceeds National standards and significantly impacts mortality rates. In 

additional to excellent response times the cost of this services is less than half that of an 

ambulance. As the COVID vaccine becomes readily available and things we begin to 

return to normal, the BRF&R needs to continue their QRV service in the community.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

194



Bibliography 
 

Bibliography 

American Heart Association. (2013, March). Every Second Counts Rural and Community Access to 

Emergency Devices. FACTS, pp. 1-2. 

Blanchard, I. E., Doig, C. J., Hagel, B. E., Zygun, D. A., Kortbeek, J. B., Powell, D. G., . . . Innes, G. D. (2012). 

Emergency Medical Services Response Time and Mortality in an Urban Setting. Prehospital 

Emergency Care, 16:1, 142-151. 

Bryne, J. P., Mann, N. C., Dai, M., Mason, S. A., Karanicolas, P., Rizoli, S., & Nathens, A. B. (2019). 

Association Between Emergency Medical Service Response Time and Motor Vehicle Crash 

Mortality in the United States. JAMA Surg, 154(4) 286-293. 

Clawson, M. J. (2020, May 16). WIKIPEDIA. Retrieved from Medical Priority Dispatch System: 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Medical_Priority_Dispatch_System#Response_Determinant 

Fitch, J. (2005, August 31). Response Times: Myths, Measurement and Management. Retrieved from 

Journal of Emergency Medical Services: https://www.jems.com/operations/equipment-

gear/response-times-myths44-measure/ 

Michaels, D. ,. (2018). Helicopter versus ground ambulance:review of national database for outcomes in 

survival in transfered trauma patients in the USA. BMJ Journals Trauma Surgery & Acute Care 

Open, Volume 4, Issue 1. Retrieved from Statistics from Altmetric: 

https://dx.doi.org/10.1136/tasco-2018-000211 

NFPA CODES & STANDARDS. (2020). NFPA 1710 - Standard for the Organization and Deployment of Fire 

Suppression Operations, Emergency Medical Operations, and Special Operations to the Public by 

Career Fire Departments. Retrieved from National Fire Protection Association: NFPA.org 

World Population Review. (2020). Blowing Rock, North Carolina Population 2020. Retrieved from World 

Population Review: https://worldpopulationreview.com/us-cities/blowing-rock-nc-population 

Yeomans, J. (2011). Fire Department Response Times: What Southeastern Fire Departments Report and 

Why. Chapel Hill: Thesis by Jonathan Yeomans. 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

195



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 
 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 
 

Radio Infrastructure Update 
 

 While the public safety radio infrastructure has been a long-term project, it is with pleasure that 
we are able to report significant progress over the past year. This summary will provide the current 
status of the overall project and plans moving forward. This document does not intend to serve as a 
comprehensive review and as such I will be happy to provide answers to specific questions at the budget 
retreat. For clarification, VIPER stands for Voice Interoperability Plan for Emergency Responders and is 
the North Carolina Statewide 800Mhz public safety radio network. 
 
System-wide Status 

- The overall system plan has shifted to a primary VIPER based concept of operations with 
supplemental VHF 

o As previously discussed, the VHF spectrum is becoming increasingly prohibitive due to 
the changes in FCC frequency band allocation, looming requirement for 6.25Mhz 
narrowbanding, and geographical interference with Virginia, West Virginia, Tennessee, 
and other NC Counties 

o The large majority of end users (law, fire, rescue, EMS) have obtained dual band radios 
that will be compatible with the changeover to a primary VIPER system 

o Partnering with VIPER yields significant cost savings both in the initial construction and 
long-term operation costs. 

- A small delay was incurred as our RF Engineer changed (same firm, different assigned engineer) 
which necessitated confirmation of the radio frequency design that was in progress 

- FCC relicensing of our current VHF pairs is underway for three sites that are certain with the 
addition of Elk Knob and Foscoe as possibilities 

- A new mandatory minimum radio template has been received by NCSHP, this is being 
incorporated into our operational plans for standardized radio templates 

Communications Center (VHF/VIPER) 

- The communications center’s radios have been upgraded to include the rack-mounted radios 
and portables used as our required back-up 

- The tower is currently undergoing inspections and mapping to determine any requirements for 
additional equipment along with establishing a baseline inspection schedule for insurance 
requirements 

- The consoles are being evaluated for replacement as the current consoles are at end-of-life. The 
proposed replacements are largely fundable with our 911 Surcharge funds and additional 
funding has been budgeted as part of the overall project 

- The integration of our consoles with VIPER in addition to going on the State’s ESINet for 911 
phones will allow for a fully remote and redundant option for our communications center 
operations 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

196



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 
 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 
 

 

Buckeye Knob (VHF/VIPER) 

- The only current operation here will be determining any upgrades necessary for the tower once 
the radio design is complete 

Rich Mountain (VHF, separate VIPER tower) 

- The Rich Mountain tower is currently undergoing inspections and mapping to determine any 
requirements for additional equipment along with establishing a baseline inspection schedule 
for insurance requirements 

- The Rich Mountain back-up generator has been delivered and is in storage pending weather 
improvement to allow installation 

- The Rich Mountain towerhouse is being evaluated for retrofit vs replacement 

Sampson (VHF/VIPER) 

- This tower (referred to as Aho by NCSHP due to confusion with Sampson County) is currently 
going through federal and state approval processes 

- The construction drawings have been finalized which include current needs and room for future 
growth 

- Pending approvals, construction is tentatively planned to begin this May 

Elk Knob (VHF/VIPER) 

- Current proposal is a joint site with NCSHP, Watauga County, and State Parks 
- Tower evaluation is being considered by State Parks before initiating additional regulatory 

approvals 

Foscoe (VHF/VIPER) 

- Current proposal is a joint site with NCSHP and Watauga County 
- This site is currently going through the real estate acquisition process 

 
 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

197



February 2021 Updates for Watauga Board of Commissioners 

Blowing Rock Section – 1.2 miles  
Final design, engineering, and permitting in 2021 with possible construction to begin fall 
2021, depending on National Park Service approval timelines.  
 

Aho Section – 0.8 miles  
11.42 acres acquired in 2020 and 2.5 acres acquired in 2019.  To be designed, engineered, 
permitted with Watauga TDA funds in 2021.  Construction in 2022 will connect to existing 
trail at Sterling Creek Park. (still need funding for construction) 
 

321 Trailhead - 0.85 miles of trail  
Almost 2 acres acquired in 2020 for trailhead.  Construct trail from Niley Cook Rd (Goldmine 
Branch Park) to QP gas station in 2021.  Underpass at Tweetsie to be permitted and let to 
bid in fall 2021 with funding from Watauga TDA. 
 
 
 
 

Payne Branch Park –  
ASU, NRLP, Brushy Fork Environmental and other funding partners removed the dam and 
restored the river.  With a grant from ARHS, and partnership with Watauga County, Blue 
Ridge Conservancy is developing a trail, picnic area, 2 bridges, 3 benches, and interpretive 
sign for public to access this pocket park.   This park will be good fishing and wheelchair 
access for the community.  

We are  continuing  work on the trail connections 
throughout the corridor.  To complete the Middle Fork 
greenway, we will need continued County support  
and  additional funding.   

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

198



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

199



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

200



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

201



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

202



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

203



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

204



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

205



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

206



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

207



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

208



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

209



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

210



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

211



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

212



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

213



NC General Statute 160D-Article 11 excerpts  

 

§ 160D-1117. Periodic inspections.  
The inspection department may make periodic inspections, subject to the governing board's 
directions, for unsafe, unsanitary, or otherwise hazardous and unlawful conditions in buildings 
or structures within its planning and development regulation jurisdiction. In exercising this 
power, members of the department shall have a right to enter on any premises within the 
jurisdiction of the department at all reasonable hours for the purposes of inspection or other 
enforcement action, upon presentation of proper credentials. Inspections of dwellings shall 
follow the provisions of G.S. 160D-1207. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit 
periodic inspections in accordance with State fire prevention code or as otherwise required by 
State law. (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 2020-25, s. 51(a), (b), (d).) 
  
§ 160D-1118. Defects in buildings to be corrected.  
When a local inspector finds any defects in a building, or finds that the building has not been 
constructed in accordance with the applicable State and local laws, or that a building because 
of its condition is dangerous or contains fire hazardous conditions, it shall be the inspector's 
duty to notify the owner or occupant of the building of its defects, hazardous conditions, or 
failure to comply with law. The owner or occupant shall each immediately remedy the defects, 
hazardous conditions, or violations of law in the property. (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 
2020-25, s. 51(a), (b), (d).)  
 
§ 160D-1119. Unsafe buildings condemned. 
(a) Designation of Unsafe Buildings. – Every building that shall appear to the inspector to be 

especially dangerous to life because of its liability to fire or because of bad condition of 
walls, overloaded floors, defective construction, decay, unsafe wiring or heating systems, 
inadequate means of egress, or other causes shall be held to be unsafe, and the inspector 
shall affix a notice of the dangerous character of the structure to a conspicuous place on 
the exterior wall of the building. (b) Nonresidential Building or Structure. – In addition to 
the authority granted in subsection (a) of this section, an inspector may declare a 
nonresidential building or structure within a community development target area to be 
unsafe if it meets all of the following conditions: (1) It appears to the inspector to be vacant 
or abandoned. (2) It appears to the inspector to be in such dilapidated condition as to 
cause or contribute to blight, disease, vagrancy, or fire or safety hazard, to be a danger NC 
General Statutes - Chapter 160D Article 11 11 to children, or to tend to attract persons 
intent on criminal activities or other activities that would constitute a public nuisance. (c) 
Notice Posted on Structure. – If an inspector declares a nonresidential building or structure 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

214



to be unsafe under subsection (b) of this section, the inspector must affix a notice of the 
unsafe character of the structure to a conspicuous place on the exterior wall of the 
building. For the purposes of this section, the term "community development target area" 
means an area that has characteristics of an urban progress zone under G.S. 143B-437.09, a 
"nonresidential redevelopment area" under G.S. 160A-503(10), or an area with similar 
characteristics designated by the governing board as being in special need of revitalization 
for the benefit and welfare of its citizens. (d) Applicability to Residential Structures. – A 
local government may expand subsections (b) and (c) of this section to apply to residential 
buildings by adopting an ordinance. Before adopting such an ordinance, a local government 
shall hold a legislative hearing with published notice as provided by G.S. 160D-601. (2019-
111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 2020-25, s. 51(a), (b), (d).) 

  
§ 160D-1120. Removing notice from condemned building. 
 If any person shall remove any notice that has been affixed to any building or structure by a 
local inspector of any local government and that states the dangerous character of the building 
or structure, that person shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor. (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 
4.33(a); 2020-25, s. 51(a), (b), (d).)  
 
§ 160D-1121. Action in event of failure to take corrective action. 
 If the owner of a building or structure that has been condemned as unsafe pursuant to G.S. 
160D-1119 fails to take prompt corrective action, the local inspector shall give written notice, 
by certified mail to the owner's last known address or by personal service, of all of the 
following: (1) That the building or structure is in a condition that appears to meet one or more 
of the following conditions: a. Constitutes a fire or safety hazard. b. Is dangerous to life, health, 
or other property. c. Is likely to cause or contribute to blight, disease, vagrancy, or danger to 
children. d. Has a tendency to attract persons intent on criminal activities or other activities 
that would constitute a public nuisance. (2) That an administrative hearing will be held before 
the inspector at a designated place and time, not later than 10 days after the date of the notice, 
at which time the owner will be entitled to be heard in person or by counsel and to present 
arguments and evidence pertaining to the matter. (3) That following the hearing, the inspector 
may issue such order to repair, close, vacate, or demolish the building or structure as appears 
appropriate. If the name or whereabouts of the owner cannot, after due diligence, be 
discovered, the notice shall be considered properly and adequately served if a copy is posted on 
the outside of the building or structure in question at least 10 days prior to the hearing and a 
notice of the hearing is published in a newspaper having general circulation in the local 
government's area of jurisdiction at least NC General Statutes - Chapter 160D Article 11 12 once 
not later than one week prior to the hearing. (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 2020-25, ss. 
33, 51(a), (b), (d).) 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

215



 § 160D-1122. Order to take corrective action.  
If, upon a hearing held pursuant to the notice prescribed in G.S. 160D-1119, the inspector shall 
find that the building or structure is in a condition that constitutes a fire or safety hazard or 
renders it dangerous to life, health, or other property, the inspector shall make an order in 
writing, directed to the owner of such building or structure, requiring the owner to remedy the 
defective conditions by repairing, closing, vacating, or demolishing the building or structure or 
taking other necessary steps, within such period, not less than 60 days, as the inspector may 
prescribe, provided that where the inspector finds that there is imminent danger to life or other 
property, the inspector may order that corrective action be taken in such lesser period as may 
be feasible. (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 2020-25, s. 51(a), (b), (d).)  
 
§ 160D-1123. Appeal; finality of order if not appealed.  
Any owner who has received an order under G.S. 160D-1122 may appeal from the order to the 
governing board by giving notice of appeal in writing to the inspector and to the local 
government clerk within 10 days following issuance of the order. In the absence of an appeal, 
the order of the inspector is final. The governing board shall hear an appeal in accordance with 
G.S. 160D-406 and render a decision within a reasonable time. The governing board may affirm, 
modify and affirm, or revoke the order. (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 2020-25, ss. 34, 
51(a), (b), (d).) 
 
 § 160D-1124. Failure to comply with order. If the owner of a building or structure fails to 
comply with an order issued pursuant to G.S. 160D-1122 from which no appeal has been taken 
or fails to comply with an order of the governing board following an appeal, the owner is guilty 
of a Class 1 misdemeanor. (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 2020-25, ss. 35, 51(a), (b), (d).)  

§ 160D-1125. Enforcement.  
(a) Action Authorized. – Whenever any violation is denominated a misdemeanor under the 
provisions of this Article, the local government, either in addition to or in lieu of other 
remedies, may initiate any appropriate action or proceedings to prevent, restrain, correct, or 
abate the violation or to prevent the occupancy of the building or structure involved. (b) 
Removal of Building. – In the case of a building or structure declared unsafe under G.S. 160D-
1119 or an ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160D-1119, a local government may, in lieu of 
taking action under subsection (a) of this section, cause the building or structure to be removed 
or demolished. The amounts incurred by the local government in connection with the removal 
or demolition are a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The lien 
shall be filed, have the same priority, and be collected in the same manner as liens for special 
assessments provided in Article 10 of Chapter 160A of the General Statutes. If the building or 
structure is removed or demolished by the local government, the local government shall sell 
the usable materials of the building and any personal property, fixtures, or appurtenances 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

216



found in or attached to the building. The local government shall credit the proceeds of the sale 
against the cost of the removal or demolition. Any balance remaining from the sale shall be 
deposited with the NC General Statutes - Chapter 160D Article 11 13 clerk of superior court of 
the county where the property is located and shall be disbursed by the court to the person 
found to be entitled thereto by final order or decree of the court. (c) Additional Lien. – The 
amounts incurred by a local government in connection with the removal or demolition are also 
a lien against any other real property owned by the owner of the building or structure and 
located within the local government's planning and development regulation jurisdiction, and 
for cities without extraterritorial planning and development jurisdiction, within one mile of the 
city limits, except for the owner's primary residence. The provisions of subsection (b) of this 
section apply to this additional lien, except that this additional lien is inferior to all prior liens 
and shall be collected as a money judgment. (d) Nonexclusive Remedy. – Nothing in this section 
shall be construed to impair or limit the power of the local government to define and declare 
nuisances and to cause their removal or abatement by summary proceedings or otherwise. 
(2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 2020-25, ss. 36, 51(a), (b), (d).) § 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

217



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Boone Fair Housing Taskforce 
 

Arguments for Minimum Housing Codes in Watauga County 
 

January 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

218



Abstract 
 
 Minimum housing codes are a common and frequently used resource by counties and 

municipalities to safeguard and maintain safe and fair conditions for their constituents’ rights as 

tenants. While the town of Boone has a minimum housing code enforced by Boone’s Planning 

and Inspection department, the county does not. Implementing a minimum housing code would 

protect members of the county in a far reaching and necessary manner. With the housing crisis 

growing, the inevitably of poor housing conditions looms and a lack of a vote on a minimum 

housing code would be irresponsible for the sake of the county. 

  

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

219



The Precedent 

 

 Counties across the state have implemented minimum housing codes. Urban counties, 

like Orange, Cumberland, and Mecklenburg, among others, all have existing county-wide 

housing codes. For the sake of our non-urban Watauga, we need to examine rural counties that 

have made similar strides. Stanly, Henderson, Wayne, Onslow, and many other less populated 

counties have implemented minimum housing standards. Despite some of these counties varying 

in political climates ranging from very progressive to conservative, across ideologies these 

counties recognize that minimum standards of housing do not serve as a government overreach 

but a measure for how we want our neighbors to live. 

 

General Research, Statues, and Code related information 

  

If minimum housing codes are unneeded, why did the General Assembly provide for them in the 

General Statutes? (§ 160D-1129, effective January 2021)  

 

The only state law referring to minimal housing is as follows, 

 

 

Article 12. 

Minimum Housing Codes. 

§ 160D-1201. (Effective January 1, 2021) Authorization. 

(a) Occupied Dwellings. – The existence and occupation of dwellings that are unfit for 

human habitation are inimical to the welfare and dangerous and injurious to the health and 

safety 

of the people of this State. A public necessity exists for the repair, closing, or demolition of such 

dwellings. Whenever any local government finds that there exists in the planning and 

development regulation jurisdiction dwellings that are unfit for human habitation due to 

dilapidation; defects increasing the hazards of fire, accidents or other calamities; lack of 

ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities; or other conditions rendering the dwellings unsafe or 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

220



unsanitary, or dangerous or detrimental to the health, safety, morals, or otherwise inimical to 

the 

welfare of the residents of the local government, power is conferred upon the local government 

to exercise its police powers to repair, close, or demolish the dwellings consistent with the 

provisions of this Article. 

(b) Abandoned Structures. – Any local government may by ordinance provide for the 

repair, closing, or demolition of any abandoned structure that the governing board finds to be a 

health or safety hazard as a result of the attraction of insects or rodents, conditions creating a 

fire 

hazard, dangerous conditions constituting a threat to children, or frequent use by vagrants as 

living quarters in the absence of sanitary facilities. The ordinance may provide for the repair, 

closing, or demolition of such structure pursuant to the same provisions and procedures as are 

prescribed by this Article for the repair, closing, or demolition of dwellings found to be unfit for 

human habitation. (2019-111, s. 2.4.) 
 

The above section, lifted directly from North Carolina law, shows a severe lack of definition and 

is vague which allows for the nuance to be interpreted by the judge of a court ruling on the issue. 

While the implementation of a minimum housing code exists as a rigid and easy to follow 

standard. 

 

Even if some provisions from state law protected tenants in the same way Boone’s (and other 

counties) minimum housing codes do, an argument that the minimum housing code is redundant 

falls flat. Local governments need to remain accessible to their community members and 

implementing a minimal housing code at a county level would give citizens specific information 

about what was expected of their landlords.  

 

Minimum Housing codes not only clarify expectations for tenants, it gives guidance to inspectors 

about what’s acceptable and what isn’t. 

 

 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

221



 

Henderson County, The Rural County that Leads the Way 

 

Henderson county’s code, though less detailed and comprehensive than the town of Boone’s 

deals with much of the same issues. 

 

*The rest of the section is citing Henderson County’s Minimum Housing Code, not state statutes. 

Below are general examples of a minimum housing code that provides protections for tenants. 

 

48-41. General  

Scope. The provisions of this section shall govern the minimum conditions and standards for 

light, ventilation, and space for occupying a structure. 

Responsibility. The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain light, ventilation and space 

conditions in compliance with these requirements. A person shall not occupy as owner- 

occupant, or permit another person to occupy, any premises that do not comply with the 

requirements of this section. 

Alternative devices. In lieu of the means for natural light and ventilation herein prescribed, 

artificial light or mechanical ventilation complying with the North Carolina Building Code shall 

be permitted. 

 

48-38. Extermination  

Infestation. All structures shall be kept free from insect and rodent infestation. All structures in 

which insects or rodents are found shall be promptly exterminated by approved processes that 

will not be injurious to human health. After extermination, proper precautions shall be taken to 

prevent reinfestation. 

Owner. The owner of any structure shall be responsible for extermination within the structure 

prior to renting or leasing the structure. 

 

48-42. Light  

Habitable spaces. Every habitable space shall have at least one window facing directly to the 

outdoors or to a court to permit natural lighting. 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

222



Exception: Where natural light for rooms or spaces without exterior windows or glazing areas is 

provided through an adjoining room, the unobstructed opening to the adjoining room shall be at 

least 8 percent of the floor area of the interior room or space, but not less than 5 square feet. The 

exterior window area shall be based on the total floor area being served. 

Common halls and stairways. Every common hall, ingress, egress and stairway in residential 

occupancies, other than in 1 and 2 family dwellings, shall be lighted at all times with at least a 60 

watt standard incandescent light bulb (or fluorescent equivalent) provided that the spacing 

between lights shall not be greater than 30 feet. 

For the purposes of brevity, the inclusion of more examples would only further complicate the 

example. Though I encourage you to read the entire Henderson county minimum housing code, 

found here, https://www.hendersoncountync.gov/code-document/chapter-48-minimum-housing-

code. 

 

The Model in Our County, Boone’s Minimum Housing Code 

 
While Henderson serves as an excellent example for the way another county is running their 
minimal housing code, Boone’s exists as an applicable and relevant model for our county at 
large.  
 
 Boone’s code is both comprehensive and tailored to the needs of a significant portion of our 
counties population. You can find the code in its entirety here, 
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/boone/latest/boone_nc/0-0-0-4975  
 
Here’s some examples of what the code covers, 
 
§ 151.18 MINIMUM SPACE AND USE REQUIREMENTS. 
  (A)   Required space in dwelling unit. Every dwelling unit shall contain at least 150 square feet 
of floor space for the first occupant thereof and at least 100 additional square feet of floor area 
per each additional occupant. 
(D)   Occupancy of the dwelling unit below grade. No basement or cellar space shall be used as a 

habitable room or dwelling unit unless meeting all specifications for habitable rooms. 

 

 

 

§ 151.19 STRUCTURAL AND GENERAL STANDARDS TECHNICAL GUIDELINES. 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

223

https://www.hendersoncountync.gov/code-document/chapter-48-minimum-housing-code
https://www.hendersoncountync.gov/code-document/chapter-48-minimum-housing-code
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/boone/latest/boone_nc/0-0-0-4975


(A)   Foundation. 

      (1)   Beneath the building firm ground, reasonably dry, no soggy ground, no water standing, 

no water running under building; 

(2)   Sound footing, adequate bearing; 

  (C)   Roofs. 

      (1)   No rafters rotted, broken, sagging or improperly supported ends. All eaves in proper 

structural condition; 

 

As evidenced above, Boone’s minimum housing code is not a radical set of government rules, 

instead a reasonable standard of living we should want our neighbors to have. It is also important 

to note that these standards are entirely report based, meaning that they would only be serving 

tenants and citizens concerned with their living conditions. 

 

What Wataugans Think 

 

Boone Fair Housing’s resolutions passed through council were the most viewed “The 

Appalachian Article” of 2020, also garnering significant support and comments on the “Watuaga 

Democrat” article covering the same topic. Citizens of the county feel that the housing situation 

only stands to worsen. Watauga residents are being priced out farther and farther into the county, 

while also simultaneously losing the town’s mechanism of rental protection. This issue is not one 

that is student related, nor is it one entirely related to non-students, it is instead an issue of equity 

and fairness. Many tenants already feel they are being rented substandard housing while paying 

exorbitant rents, this gives tenants an option. People deserve the right to report a poor living 

condition and feel that the county government has their interests in mind. It is time to set a 

standard for Watauga, leaving no vagueness on the standards we wish to uphold for the many 

that live in our county. 

 

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

224



 

 

 

Recommendations 

 
The clear move is that Watauga County should move to adopt a minimum housing code, county 

wide, while building it based on many of the sentiments shared by the town of Boone’s 

minimum housing code. The county could remove any portion of the code that the 

commissioners feel is not suited for the county at large, while also understanding that the code 

would exist in an entirely report based system. I welcome any suggestions, or questions about the 

topic and encourage the commissioners to adopt a code that would work for and protect all 

citizens of Watauga county.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Courtesy of Dalton George and the Boone Fair Housing Taskforce  

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

225



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

226



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

227



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

228



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

229



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

230



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

231



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

232



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

233



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

234



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

235



2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

236



2/2/2021 Early North Carolina broadband survey data shows mediocre access - Carolina Journal - Carolina Journal

https://www.carolinajournal.com/news-article/early-north-carolina-broadband-survey-data-shows-mediocre-access/?utm_source=Business+North+Car… 1/3

Early North Carolina broadband survey
data shows mediocre access

Johnny Kampis
in Quick Takes

February 1, 2021
1:52PM

NEWS: QUICK TAKES

North Carolinians can now view results from an ongoing survey designed to
show gaps in coverage in the state, which so far indicates a lack of access to
broadband.

The North Carolina Broadband Survey is gauging the availability of wireline
and wireless internet, as well as speeds, across the state using self-reported
responses. As of Friday, Jan. 29, just more than 40,000 residents and business
owners have responded, with about 5% of them reporting having no internet at
home. 

Thomas Parrish, acting secretary of the N.C. Department of Information
Technology, said in a news release that he hopes launching the dashboard will
help encourage others to participate in the survey. 

“The survey is ongoing, and as we continue to navigate the pandemic and
respond to the more critical need for high-speed internet service, it is more
important than ever to help get a more accurate picture of broadband in North
Carolina,” he said.

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

237

https://www.carolinajournal.com/person/johnny-kampis/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/person/johnny-kampis/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/article-column/quick-takes/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/news-article/
https://www.ncbroadband.gov/broadband-nc/broadband-survey/broadband-survey-dashboards


2/2/2021 Early North Carolina broadband survey data shows mediocre access - Carolina Journal - Carolina Journal

https://www.carolinajournal.com/news-article/early-north-carolina-broadband-survey-data-shows-mediocre-access/?utm_source=Business+North+Car… 2/3

The survey can be taken either online or by phone by texting “internet” to 919-
750-0553. It is available in both English and Spanish.

Jeff Surai, director of the NCDIT’s Broadband Infrastructure Office, said the
department is urging everyone to take the survey – whether or not they have
good broadband service – so the state can more accurately map the high-speed
internet landscape. Data from the survey will better enable the state to
determine areas most in need of grants from the Growing Rural Economies
with Access to Technology program. That includes funds from pandemic relief,
which, as Carolina Journal previously reported, required some budgeting
switcheroo in an agreement between Gov. Roy Cooper and the North Carolina
Legislature. 

“Broadband availability is a major issue, and this data will help us provide
much-needed context to the stories we hear every day from residents struggling
to work, learn and interact online,” he said. “With better context, we can
advocate more effectively for our unserved and underserved communities in
desperate need for expanded availability and more affordable access to high-
speed internet service.”

The survey has found mediocre results for broadband access in North Carolina.
The median internet download speed is 16 Megabits per second while the
median upload speed is 3 Mbps. The Federal Communications Commission
considers broadband as download speeds of 25 Mbps and upload speeds of 3
Mbps. Only 39% of respondents say they have adequate broadband speeds.

Respondents also say they pay a lot for internet, as the selection of “over $125”
was the most commonly chosen option at 18%. But that could include
respondents mistakenly including bundled services with both cable and
internet for their answer, although the question asks the price for internet
only. 

categories: Business and Regulations, CJ Quick Take, Economic Growth &
Development, History, K-12 Education, North Carolina

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

238

https://www.ncbroadband.gov/broadband-nc/north-carolina-broadband-survey
https://www.carolinajournal.com/news-article/broadband-funding-will-capture-lawmakers-attention-this-session/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/category/business-and-regulations/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/category/cj-quick-take/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/category/economic-growth-development/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/category/history/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/category/k-12-education/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/category/north-carolina/


2/2/2021 Early North Carolina broadband survey data shows mediocre access - Carolina Journal - Carolina Journal

https://www.carolinajournal.com/news-article/early-north-carolina-broadband-survey-data-shows-mediocre-access/?utm_source=Business+North+Car… 3/3

tags: Gov. Roy Cooper, N.C. Broadband survey, N.C. Department of Information
Technology, rural broadband

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

239

https://www.carolinajournal.com/tag/gov-roy-cooper/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/tag/n-c-broadband-survey/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/tag/n-c-department-of-information-technology/
https://www.carolinajournal.com/tag/rural-broadband/


Revised/Effective 7/1/2019 1.01 Percent

Grade Minimum Mid-Point Maximum

Container Site Attendant 1 $25,298 $31,623 $37,948

Cook I 1 $25,298 $31,623 $37,948

Custodian I 1 $25,298 $31,623 $37,948

Kitchen Assistant 1 $25,298 $31,623 $37,948

Utility Worker 1 $25,298 $31,623 $37,948

Custodian II 2 $26,816 $33,520 $40,225

Processing Assistant III 2 $26,816 $33,520 $40,225

Senior Center Assistant 2 $26,816 $33,520 $40,225

Cook II 3 $28,425 $35,532 $42,638

Data Entry Specialist 3 $28,425 $35,532 $42,638

In-Home Aide 3 $28,425 $35,532 $42,638

Motor Vehicle Valuation Specialist 3 $28,425 $35,532 $42,638

Office Clerk 3 $28,425 $35,532 $42,638

Public Works Technician 3 $28,425 $35,532 $42,638

Recycling Truck Operator 3 $28,425 $35,532 $42,638

Tax Listing Clerk 3 $28,425 $35,532 $42,638

Deputy Register of Deeds I 4 $30,131 $37,664 $45,196

Income Maintenance Caseworker I 4 $30,131 $37,664 $45,196

Office Assistant 4 $30,131 $37,664 $45,196

Program Assistant - Elections 4 $30,131 $37,664 $45,196

Program Assistant - Planning 4 $30,131 $37,664 $45,196

Program Assistant - Recreation 4 $30,131 $37,664 $45,196

Sanitation Truck Operator 4 $30,131 $37,664 $45,196

Tax Mapper I 4 $30,131 $37,664 $45,196

Veterans Services Assistant 4 $30,131 $37,664 $45,196

Custodian Crew Chief 5 $31,939 $39,923 $47,908

Deputy Tax Collector I 5 $31,939 $39,923 $47,908

Equipment Operator I 5 $31,939 $39,923 $47,908

License Tag Specialist 5 $31,939 $39,923 $47,908

Maintenance Technician I 5 $31,939 $39,923 $47,908

Administrative Assistant I 6 $33,855 $42,319 $50,783

Administrative Assistant I / DCI/TAC Coordinator 6 $33,855 $42,319 $50,783

Animal Control Officer 6 $33,855 $42,319 $50,783

Deputy Register Of Deeds II 6 $33,855 $42,319 $50,783

Equipment Operator II 6 $33,855 $42,319 $50,783

Finance Accounting Tech I 6 $33,855 $42,319 $50,783

Income Maintenance Caseworker II 6 $33,855 $42,319 $50,783

Jailer I 6 $33,855 $42,319 $50,783

Manufactured Housing Specialist 6 $33,855 $42,319 $50,783

Telecommunicator I 6 $33,855 $42,319 $50,783

Watauga County Pay and Classification Plan

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

240



Deputy Tax Collector II 7 $35,886 $44,858 $53,830

Emergency Management Technician I 7 $35,886 $44,858 $53,830

Finance Accounting Tech II 7 $35,886 $44,858 $53,830

Jailer II 7 $35,886 $44,858 $53,830

Maintenance Mechanic II 7 $35,886 $44,858 $53,830

Maintenance Technician II 7 $35,886 $44,858 $53,830

Recycling Coordinator 7 $35,886 $44,858 $53,830

Social Worker I 7 $35,886 $44,858 $53,830

Telecommunicator II 7 $35,886 $44,858 $53,830

Administrative Assistant II 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Administrative Assistant II - Sheriff 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Assistant Aquatics Director 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Business Property Appraiser II 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Chief Animal Control Officer 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Chief Deputy Register of Deeds 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Child Services Enforcement Agent II 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Conservation Technician 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Deputy Sheriff I 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Emergency Management Technician II 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

GIS Technician II 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Income Maintenance Supervisor I 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Recreation Specialist I 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Tax Appraiser I 8 $38,040 $47,549 $57,059

Chief Finance Accounting Tech /Payroll 9 $40,322 $50,402 $60,483

Deputy Sheriff II 9 $40,322 $50,402 $60,483

E911 Addressing Technician 9 $40,322 $50,402 $60,483

Jail Supervisor 9 $40,322 $50,402 $60,483

Senior Center Director I 9 $40,322 $50,402 $60,483

Aquatics Director 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Assistant Athletic Director 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Child Services Enforcement Supervisor I 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Detective 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Domestic Violence Officer 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Home Delivered Meals Coordinator 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

License Tag Director 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Maintenance Tech Crew Chief 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Recreation Specialist II 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Senior Center Director II 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Social Worker II 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Tax Appraiser II 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Telecommunications Supervisor 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Veteran Service Officer 10 $42,741 $53,427 $64,112

Assistant Chief Jailer 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

Clerk to the Board 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

241



Code Enforcement Officer I 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

Deputy Sheriff-Sergeant 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

Deputy Sheriff-Sergeant-Civil 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

Emergency Mgmt Coord/Fire Marshal 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

Human Resources Coordinator 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

Maintenance Mechanic Crew Chief 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

Planner I 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

Planner/Development Coordinator 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

POA CAP Case Manager 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

Sergeant Detective 11 $45,306 $56,632 $67,959

Athletic Director 12 $48,024 $60,030 $72,036

Board of Elections Director 12 $48,024 $60,030 $72,036

Code Enforcement Officer II 12 $48,024 $60,030 $72,036

Programmer/Analyst 12 $48,024 $60,030 $72,036

RN Supervisor/Assessor 12 $48,024 $60,030 $72,036

Social Worker III 12 $48,024 $60,030 $72,036

Apprasial Director/Re-evaluation Coordinator 13 $50,906 $63,632 $76,358

Code Enforcement Officer III 13 $50,906 $63,632 $76,358

Deputy Sheriff-Lieutenant 13 $50,906 $63,632 $76,358

In-Home Services Supervisor 13 $50,906 $63,632 $76,358

Lieutenant-Civil 13 $50,906 $63,632 $76,358

Planner II 13 $50,906 $63,632 $76,358

Social Worker I/A/T 13 $50,906 $63,632 $76,358

Tax Collections Director 13 $50,906 $63,632 $76,358

Chief Code Enforcement Officer 14 $53,960 $67,450 $80,940

Chief Detention Officer 14 $53,960 $67,450 $80,940

PC/Network Specialist 14 $53,960 $67,450 $80,940

Chief Detective Captain 15 $57,197 $71,497 $85,796

Deputy Sheriff-Captain 15 $57,197 $71,497 $85,796

Emergency Services Director 15 $57,197 $71,497 $85,796

Human Resources Manager 15 $57,197 $71,497 $85,796

Major 16 $60,629 $75,787 $90,944

Parks and Recreation Director 16 $60,629 $75,787 $90,944

Project on Aging Director 16 $60,629 $75,787 $90,944

Register Of Deeds 16 $60,629 $75,787 $90,944

Social Worker Supervisor III 16 $60,629 $75,787 $90,944

Maintenance Director 17 $64,267 $80,334 $96,401

Operations Services Director 17 $64,267 $80,334 $96,401

No Positions Assigned 18

Planning & Inspections/EDC Director 19 $72,210 $90,263 $108,316

Tax Administrator 19 $72,210 $90,263 $108,316

County Sheriff 20 $76,543 $95,679 $114,815

Finance Director 20 $76,543 $95,679 $114,815

Information Technology Director 20 $76,543 $95,679 $114,815

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

242



Social Services Director 21 $81,136 $101,420 $121,703

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

243



Revised/Effective 03/01/2021 1 Percent
5% Increase Between Grades 1.05

Grade Minimum Mid-Point Maximum

Container Site Attendant 1 31,939 39,923 47,909

Cook I 1 31,939 39,923 47,909

Custodian I 1 31,939 39,923 47,909

Kitchen Assistant 1 31,939 39,923 47,909

Utility Worker 1 31,939 39,923 47,909

Custodian II 2 33,536 41,920 50,304

Processing Assistant III 2 33,536 41,920 50,304

Senior Center Assistant 2 33,536 41,920 50,304

Cook II 3 35,213 44,016 52,819

Data Entry Specialist 3 35,213 44,016 52,819

In-Home Aide 3 35,213 44,016 52,819

Motor Vehicle Valuation Specialist 3 35,213 44,016 52,819

Office Clerk 3 35,213 44,016 52,819

Public Works Technician 3 35,213 44,016 52,819

Recycling Truck Operator 3 35,213 44,016 52,819

Tax Listing Clerk 3 35,213 44,016 52,819

Deputy Register of Deeds I 4 36,973 46,217 55,460

Income Maintenance Caseworker I 4 36,973 46,217 55,460

Office Assistant 4 36,973 46,217 55,460

Program Assistant - Elections 4 36,973 46,217 55,460

Program Assistant - Planning 4 36,973 46,217 55,460

Program Assistant - Recreation 4 36,973 46,217 55,460

Sanitation Truck Operator 4 36,973 46,217 55,460

Tax Mapper I 4 36,973 46,217 55,460

Veterans Services Assistant 4 36,973 46,217 55,460

Custodian Crew Chief 5 38,822 48,528 58,233

Deputy Tax Collector I 5 38,822 48,528 58,233

Equipment Operator I 5 38,822 48,528 58,233

License Tag Specialist 5 38,822 48,528 58,233

Maintenance Technician I 5 38,822 48,528 58,233

Administrative Assistant I 6 40,763 50,954 61,145

Administrative Assistant I / DCI/TAC Coordinator 6 40,763 50,954 61,145

Animal Control Officer 6 40,763 50,954 61,145

Deputy Register Of Deeds II 6 40,763 50,954 61,145

Equipment Operator II 6 40,763 50,954 61,145

Finance Accounting Tech I 6 40,763 50,954 61,145

Income Maintenance Caseworker II 6 40,763 50,954 61,145

Jailer I 6 40,763 50,954 61,145

Manufactured Housing Specialist 6 40,763 50,954 61,145

Telecommunicator I 6 40,763 50,954 61,145

Deputy Tax Collector II 7 42,801 53,502 64,202

Emergency Management Technician I 7 42,801 53,502 64,202

Watauga County Pay and Classification Plan
2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

244



Finance Accounting Tech II 7 42,801 53,502 64,202

Jailer II 7 42,801 53,502 64,202

Maintenance Mechanic II 7 42,801 53,502 64,202

Maintenance Technician II 7 42,801 53,502 64,202

Recycling Coordinator 7 42,801 53,502 64,202

Social Worker I 7 42,801 53,502 64,202

Telecommunicator II 7 42,801 53,502 64,202

Administrative Assistant II 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Administrative Assistant II - Sheriff 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Assistant Aquatics Director 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Business Property Appraiser II 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Chief Animal Control Officer 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Chief Deputy Register of Deeds 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Child Services Enforcement Agent II 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Conservation Technician 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Deputy Sheriff I 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Emergency Management Technician II 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

GIS Technician II 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Income Maintenance Supervisor I 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Recreation Specialist I 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Tax Appraiser I 8 44,941 56,177 67,412

Chief Finance Accounting Tech /Payroll 9 47,188 58,986 70,783

Deputy Sheriff II 9 47,188 58,986 70,783

E911 Addressing Technician 9 47,188 58,986 70,783

Jail Supervisor 9 47,188 58,986 70,783

Senior Center Director I 9 47,188 58,986 70,783

Aquatics Director 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Assistant Athletic Director 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Child Services Enforcement Supervisor I 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Detective 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Domestic Violence Officer 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Home Delivered Meals Coordinator 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

License Tag Director 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Maintenance Tech Crew Chief 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Recreation Specialist II 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Senior Center Director II 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Social Worker II 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Tax Appraiser II 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Telecommunications Supervisor 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Veteran Service Officer 10 49,548 61,935 74,322

Assistant Chief Jailer 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

Clerk to the Board 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

Code Enforcement Officer I 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

Deputy Sheriff-Sergeant 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

Deputy Sheriff-Sergeant-Civil 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

Emergency Mgmt Coord/Fire Marshal 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

245



Human Resources Coordinator 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

Maintenance Mechanic Crew Chief 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

Planner I 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

Planner/Development Coordinator 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

POA CAP Case Manager 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

Sergeant Detective 11 52,025 65,032 78,038

Athletic Director 12 54,627 68,283 81,940

Board of Elections Director 12 54,627 68,283 81,940

Code Enforcement Officer II 12 54,627 68,283 81,940

Programmer/Analyst 12 54,627 68,283 81,940

RN/Cap Case Manager 12 54,627 68,283 81,940

Social Worker III 12 54,627 68,283 81,940

Apprasial Director/Re-evaluation Coordinator 13 57,358 71,697 86,037

Code Enforcement Officer III 13 57,358 71,697 86,037

Deputy Sheriff-Lieutenant 13 57,358 71,697 86,037

In-Home Services Supervisor 13 57,358 71,697 86,037

Lieutenant-Civil 13 57,358 71,697 86,037

Planner II 13 57,358 71,697 86,037

Social Worker I/A/T 13 57,358 71,697 86,037

Tax Collections Director 13 57,358 71,697 86,037

Chief Code Enforcement Officer 14 60,226 75,282 90,339

Chief Detention Officer 14 60,226 75,282 90,339

PC/Network Specialist 14 60,226 75,282 90,339

Chief Detective Captain 15 63,237 79,046 94,856

Deputy Sheriff-Captain 15 63,237 79,046 94,856

Emergency Services Director 15 63,237 79,046 94,856

Human Resources Manager 15 63,237 79,046 94,856

Major - Chief Deputy 16 66,399 82,999 99,598

Parks and Recreation Director 16 66,399 82,999 99,598

Project on Aging Director 16 66,399 82,999 99,598

Register Of Deeds 16 66,399 82,999 99,598

Social Worker Supervisor III 16 66,399 82,999 99,598

Maintenance Director 17 69,719 87,149 104,578

Operations Services Director 17 69,719 87,149 104,578

No Positions Assigned 18 73,205 91,506 109,807

Planning & Inspections/EDC Director 19 76,865 96,081 115,298

Tax Administrator 19 76,865 96,081 115,298

County Sheriff 20 80,708 100,885 121,062

Finance Director 20 80,708 100,885 121,062

Information Technology Director 20 80,708 100,885 121,062

Social Services Director 21 84,744 105,930 127,116

2021 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat

246


	Cover
	County Manager's Message
	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	FY 2021 Review and Discussion of FY 2022 Budget
	A.  Revenues
	B.  Expenditures
	C.  Debt Service Report
	D.  Budget Calendar
	E.  Special Appropriations

	Review of Current CIP
	A.  Current CIP Status Report
	B.  Courtroom # 2 Renovations
	D. East Annex Building Program
	F.  County Facilities Assessment Update
	G.  Courthouse Parking
	H.  Recreation Matters
	I.  Community Recreation Center Update
	J. Library
	K.  Habitat Road Request
	L.  School Facilities

	Sanitation Matters
	A. Organics Recycling Market Study
	B.  Facility Upgrades

	CCC&TI
	Tourism Development Authority (TDA)
	Watauga Medics
	A.  Annual Report
	B.  Future Needs

	Public Safety and Emergency Communications Systems Update
	Middle Fork Greenway Update
	Minimum Housing Standards
	Census 2020
	Broadband Update
	Employee Compensation and Retention Plan



